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MURREE BREWERY CO.LTD.

IS0 9001, 14001, HACCP & OHSAS CERTIFIED COMPANY

December 04, 2023

The General Manager

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Stock Exchange Building,

Stock Exchange Road,

Karachi.

Subject: Annual Audited Accounts for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Dear Sir,
This is with reference to email received from SECP to place a clear and readable copy of the
Annual Audited Accounts for the year ended June 30, 2023 of the Company on PSX
Website.

In this regard, we are again uploading the Annual Accounts of the Company in clear and
readable form for the review of stakeholders.

You may please inform the TRE Certificate Holders of the Exchange accordingly.

Sincerely Yours,

Ch. Waqar"A. Kahloon
Company Secretary

Encl. As Above

MURREE BREWERY CO.LTD.

National Park Road. P.O. Box # 13, Rawalpindi Pakistan. £ HACCP

Phone: (92-51) 5567041-7. Fax: (92-51) 5584420, 5529084, 5567188. CERTIFIED

E-mail: murbr@cyber.net.pk, murreebrewery@cyber.net.pk
www.murreebrewery.com
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affices, factory, godowns, and other build-
ings, which form an imposing structurs
on the grand trunk road leading lrom
Peshawar direct to Calcutts, and they have
a foor space ol about 50,000 square fest
in extent.  The property was erected at
o rost of mere than Rs. 00,000, Within
the compound is & mosgue to which
Malwmmedan employees retire for prayer.

The head office (s wnder the super-
imtendence of Alian Mohamed Hussein,
and the firm bave agencies in nearly overy
part ol India; the princlpal ane belng at
Phellsi, wheee the management is in the
humals of Afan Dost Mobamed; those at
Cawnpore qml Locknow are controlled by
Mian Faral Ellabi, and others st Muolian,
Smlkut, and Hyderabnd [Sind) are
wirkeil Iy various commission agents,

Wet-salied skins, dealt with ot the first
three of the towns just named are, on
receipt at the Mctories, assurted aceording
* prives * ond * scoonils,
aml l]llTrl:-u'Ii:nltll |'r,I inrasarement  amd
werghe  imio Y exten heavy,” ™ heavy,”™
*ameliines,” ol 2 Hghe * pareels.  Con-
sigimmonts of these are e up i Delli
omel Cawnpore for despaich 1o Calouiia,
Bombay, or Kuarchi, wlere they are
shijpeil 1o e Ulnitesd -Siaes of Americs,

l'-llry saltesd guatchnd sheep skins from
||]1 ||F.'|I'Il|'ll|.‘l... 1] h.;.-|| an wllicis LIIJH!IH:I'II"I’
in the market ot Amgitsar, are sored in
godowns ot headguariers For  selection,
assoriment, and packing, and afrer belag
subspguently pressed m holes, they ang
forwirded Tur shipment o European con-
tries or the Pobted Staies ol Amerie.
Shovpkios and jeclls are alwe expried
o Lhe alwee-tgmed  counteies, while
England i the destination for woul, '

The fing is regreesented in Amgrica by
Messrs. . 1l. Rossbach and Lrothers,
whose agent in Amritsar—hlir. Poter A
Schmedding—enters inte and compleies
oll contracts wab them, and the nnnmal
fluantity of skins which change hands in
this msamnet is uow aboul jooo000 in
mmmber, Al parkages for oversens are
imprked with the lettrrs " H, B

Missra.  Molaneil ||1.1.|;|!|‘H .n'L”qud.m
possess o submiantin] sum ol mwopey 6
eapital for ibe carrying on of their vass
usiness, and all Anancial matters are
vatrusted 1o the National Bank ef lndia,
Lud.

About two umiteed ands ane cmployed
daily at carh of the factories, bal these are
exelusive of o large aind comnpetcnt clerieal
stafl, busincss nesbstonts, amd coaisskon
Amaritsar ol e varkous

o guady

agenis  al

branches.

- THE PUNJAB

Apart from his strenuods commercial
lile; the rhiel partser—Aian Mohamed
Husscin—takes a kern intercst in the
geneml wellure of his fellow Mahom-
mulans, st inihe town of Amritsar jtself
he is extremicdy pupular ameng sl sections
of the conumunity, [0 is ane of the tenes
of the Muhommedan religion that during
e montly of Wajjal its wealthy adberenis
should give alms to the poor 1o the extent
of 3} pur ccul. upon the value of ibeir
poasessions, and Minn Mulnmed Hussein,
in cumpliniee with this injunction, regands
it as a sered ebligition rosting upan
hiin to visit every Mabommedin man and
woman i Amritsar, to whom e prosenis
money and clothing secording to thelr
several netessities.

Further than this, e grants scholar-
ships 1o sons of poor parents with the
pbject of enalding them o prosccule thelr
studion in religiou mnd viher subjests, and
of encouraging mlvianced stulents o pee-
cevd b il taking of University degrees.

-
THE MURREE BREWERY COMPANY, LTD,

Thas comprny was estpliiehed fn the
vear tBGo’ with il uliject all seipipl yiig
British troeps - in Northern  India with
ol eer ab o reasomable price, the im-
purted priicle in dhose days being very
castly, aml by contracts given (u ihe
company by Gevernment were  periodi-
cally renowel up e 1gop, when they
ceased, aml open cempetition lad to b
faeal,

Ao abird of b presest  Duildings—
kowi an the Glioes Gauly llrewery—were
thes in rxl-‘mu'l." gl consiiled of two
sets of mubings (75 guariers), brow-
house, fermwnting iuens, cellars, offices,
and the nssistant brewer's guariers, but
an e mciensed (urther accommoedation
wos sgrurml by the enection of wther
structurcs higher up the side of the hill,
upon which the premiws are ecrected.
The site i alwat ik oriles alistant along
the wwin rad from Murree,  Fioally, a
new sel of malings was buile 1876,
the cipacily being 100 qwiners al &
time,  The bariey malied liere 1 gspally
wlitimesd demn il Norile-West Frontier

T'rovinee, ol alwo weeassonally from 1he

Rewari distrirt,

The ™ upper tmhings ™ conwist of three
flumrs.  Chn the top of these is i steep-
g tank, aml in the two upper storeys
ibere  is sulfivicnt space 10 " grow ™'
oo yuaricrs of barley. On the third
flear v the kiln on which ihe mulied
grain s dricd aml cured, as well na a

G633

foom  for screening and  storing  1he
finished malt. Steps lead sne down to
the hep-store and mill-room, where thers
iv 8 wery fne grinding wmachiye, by
Mewmsrs. Worsnam & Co., and close &t
Band  bw the Brewsliisg, with s (wa
twenly-guarier nush Cois amd two bl
ing cuppers. by the side of the coppers
are iwo boilers by Babeock and Wilcox,
and a compound engine by Mesirs. Mar-
shall & Sons & Co., Lid., in addition 1w
u dynamio, which supplics the hrewery
ail waltings with elereeic ligh.

A dung dhighi ool st sieps gives arcenss
o viarious slore rouiis dind e felriger-
ating  amd  fermeming  chambers,  1he”
lalier having wix vats with a capacity of
1oa hogsheads each. AL the oot of the
stejm ds a kirge yard, and on cither side
ke buge colliirs with vats of 06 hogs-
bl wapacity,  glass  epanelird  seel
ks ol 5o Dgabvads capaciy,
iy wouden vessels of varying sises, e
total storage belng abuut 3,000 bogs-
heads, To the lefe of the vard, and above
the cellars, are the old maltings and kilns,
and io the left of these is the cooperage,
in whith all the casks are repaired,
Cheanedd, amald fmally. sternlkeed by steam.
T the vight of the yard, sod alwve e
cellur, are spacwus ullwes wocupled by
the wamigor and seerctary and his head
uitice staff.

In the frent of, and (acing the main
budding, ate o printhg ofre, a buttling
aned ** pasicdrining ' reon, and @ goduwn,
wndlerneath which s avuther cellar, and
Jower duwn the hillside, and below the
main read, are exienaive yuarters fur the
Indian stafl,

On the hillside above the main build-
ings are separaie guariers for the head
alfice clerka, o large barley store, a very
fine iwosstnreyet] busse for U maneger
annd swrretary, amd onhers Tor il miabogs
g brewer, chiel accautiban, and mxsistani
seCretary, .

The water supply, obiained from
naturnl springs nearer the summit of the
hill, runs (nlo nEsenry reservoirs, frum
which it is laid on 1o every part of the
poiltiggs amld beewery,  Tle waler i
enveptionally pure, sud einbinaly subialie
for brewing ihe best quality of ales amd
| LU

A fine melalled road leads up (rom the
ninin thoroughfare o the upper maltings
at the top of the buildings, in which all
paw asterinls fre stored, and thos tw
prrvcess ol asalivmg il Do g e il
Hpun @ spaten wl mrural gravitalbioil, wiiil bl
the finished becr is received into cellars

et s i "
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THE BOMBAY PRESIDENCY, UNIT

%
ab the bass, (0
matured,

The company manufactura and sapply
to Mritish troops amd e gencral pubiic 1
*East Tndia [ale Ae ™ Light Claen-
pagne Ale and XXX Stow " in
bottles, amil “ draught beers ' in casks
and jars holding from one gallen up lo
filty-four gallons.

For the convenlence of cameens, and
for guick consumpiion, the company have
for many years past filtered most of their
draught nles, thui coalling customers (o
consime 1he conternts of casks nmd jare
ta the last drop, but owing to the difficully
of obtaining materals for this process
during the late war this practice has nog
been regularly followed. At the time
when Government comiracts ceased the
company found # necessary 1o appeing
distributing agents, and Messrs. Jamasjees
& Sens, Lid., who were, selocted for the
positlon, now soll thelr beers amd swour
in practically every wown between Mogh-
awar oml Karachi

Maturally the company were compeiled
to Bght agninst scverc competition, lat
they lave always held the langest share
of the trade i Northern ITmdia, notwith-
stancling the Tuct that everything (with
the exreprion of harley and labour) sach
as hops, casks, machinery, and phaoe, aod
a thowsand and one ardcles for the
various depariments, has io e nported
from Europe, The mblway frelgh, too,
on such guods i an buporiant fem on
a line so far from a scaport, and by adadi=
tion there b8 the rost of fransport along
33 mites of o hill rond between the
railway terminus and the brewery.

The cmnpany purchase the best hops
procurable, cither -in Englsud or Cali-
fornia.

The eapital of the company was origls
nally ficed ai Rs, 12,00,000, but dumng
the nincties of Jlast cemury B waa
increased to Ra, 1 §,00,000.

-

RAWALPINDI EREWERY

reat progress made by the
Murree Brewgry Company, Lid,, alter
formntion in year ‘1850, and the
anprecedenied debgand for Wiclr fumous
ales and siout ove greatly ncreasing
aten of Northern | led the dirccrors
1o crect & bransh Leewdwy at Rawalpindi
about thirty years later. e Lubldings,
which are in the {erm of aSguedrngle,
are enclosed by a high wall, syl com-
prise the mill-room and brow-house, with
coalers and refelgerators on the wp foor,

stored there watil

The ver

all of which are on the northern slde |
z8 and store rooms on the souih shile ;
ferndeniing  rooms, with six wats each,
a rapncity of too hogshends, are
ui ke eastern side ; and the

amd ckimg rooms are on the wesi;

ow the whole structure are luge

floar is the kiln from which
mali is tramsferred by means

steeping clstenr. Barley, hops, and other
ingredients arg raised by steam power to
the top.foorf the second, thied, and
fourth floors, guade of slate, are used for

“ growing  the barley ; and e fine
maltings have | capacity of 100 quarters
of grain, Onl the eastern side of the
outer  yard e tha cooperage amnd

engineering workshops, together with the
boilers and the dynamc-rovm, the whole
building belug lighted with dectricity. A
plemiful supply &f excellomt water is
ghtalned from twol wells wva the estale,
But in view of anjemergency arising o
cornection has b lald between the
brewery and the roporvoirs, which mect
the requirencnts of {he contonments and
the civll saiben of Rawalpiodi,

The company havg their own rallway
stiling, nmd s the fheilfiies for unluad-
fiag Eow miuiterials amgl for d“]iulﬂlli-lll'
their producss direct v the promiscs
are excepiionally good.

The storekeeper’s houlg is nair to the
gote of enranco, and a lyrge number ol
storcrooms have beer eredied within the
wall, while on the outside\al the latier
are a palatial residence and|finn grounds
for the use of ihe manngor ahd secretary.
Bungalows have been proviled for ihe
mamaging brewer, his asshidat, the dis-
tiller, aml the enginecr ; d suiiable

quartces hawe been arrangdd for the
Indian wiaff, who are Irom 259 to 300 in
aumber during the winter mofths

Cwing 1o ihe high temperatire of the
water during the swnmer months| brewing
and mubiing sperations are. only|possible
from the beginning of Ociober tofthe end
ol March.

The company have garage sccofimoda-
tion for their motor lorries, whith run
between Miwalpindi and Ghora
principil brewery near Murree.
& -z

THE RAWALPINDI DISTILLERY

About twenty years ago the

ﬁj.ﬂ o W

PROVINCES, PEN_] AB, ETC.

of the Murice lrowery Company, Ll
ose breweries are siunied at Glaar
1, near Mureer, Quoetin, and Bawals

i, replized that, m sebditiom v thae
fur = lorger osuppdy ol
“roufitey " ospirics, lere was a2 e

HF|E|I.II|I dempml for | wali
which could be placed oy
toa lower fgure thian e price

af, byl eommunicaiing with,
of the browery at Kawal-
comprises a fermwnting-
! howse, boilers, spirit sieees,
npicliine and other powms,
forming o squire wiih a
spacious yard Yo the centro.  The plam
includes two pog-siblls, cuntinoous srills
ol the Blair- plcll  amld  MacUleim
and the distillery is
: out 356000 I
gollons of spirit n\ech yeir.

All ingredients usdyl in panafaciure are
ol the best guality froforahle, gae aod
molisses being requirpd for * country ©
spirit, and the pures] barley malt for
whisky ¢ while earellen] warer is ubinined
from the company’s welly un the preitiscs.
The distillery is worked throaghout the
year, enipluyment belng [found Tor alia
filly men.
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VISION STATEMENT

Our office is in the market

MISSION STATEMENT

We the people of Muwrree Brewery Co. Ltd. make our personal commitment to
first understand our customers' requirement then to meet and exceed their

expectations, by performing the correct tasks on time and every time through:

C ontinuous improvement
A lignment of our missions and goals

R esponsibility and respect of our jobs and each other

E ducate one another
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ESTABLISHED 1860
CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chanrman-MNon Executive Director
CEQ/Director-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Head of Internal Audit

General Manager (Brewery Division)
Business Manager (Murree Glass)
Plant Manager (| i)
General Manager  (Tops)

Factory Manager (Murree Sparkletts)
Manager Compliance & Reporting

AUDIT & RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION
AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

AUDITORS

M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants.

6" Floor, State Life Bldg.
linnah Avenue, Islamabad.

Ch, Mueen Afzal

Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar

Ch. Wagar A, Kahloon

Mr. Muhammad Khurshid

Mr. Zaka Ullah Malik

Mr. Fakher-e-Mahmood

Mr, Arshad Zaheer

Mr Zaka ud Din

Mr. Talat Yagoob Awan

Mr. Fayvaz Ahmad

Mr. Muhammad Soban ur Rauf

Mr, Shahbaz Haider Agha  (Chairman)
Ch. Mueen Afzal iMember)
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza iMember)

Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza {Chairman)
Ch. Mueen Afzal (Member)
M, Aamir Hussaim Shirazr  (Member)
Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara (Member)
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar (Member)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Askari Commercial Bank Ltd, Tslamabad

Standard Chartered Bank, Islamabad

National Bank of Pakistan, Rawalpindi / Hattar

Bank Alfalah Lid, Rawalpindi

The Bank of Khyber, Hattar

Allied Bank Ltd, Rwp/Lhr/Gujranw/F. Abad/Multan
Sahiwal/Murree/Sargodha

United Bank Limited, Islamabad.

Bank Al-Habib Limited, Lahore
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ESTABLISHED 1860
CORPORATE INFORMATION

REGISTERED OFFICE

Murree Brewery Company Limited
3-National Park Road. Rawalpindi

Tel: 0531-3567041-47, Fax: 051-3584420
E-mail:

murree. breweryvig murreebrewery.com

murbriecvber.net.pk
Website: www.murreebrewery.com

FACTORIES
Murree Brewery Company Limited

3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi
Tel: 051-5567041-47, Fax: 051-5584420

Tops Food & Beverages
3-National Park Road. Rawalpindi
Tel: 051-5567041-47, Fax: 051-5565461

Plot No. 1441, Phase 111, Industrial Estate,
Hattar, District Haripur (K.P.K)
Tel: 0995617013, 617493, 617494

Murree Sparkletts
Plot No. 10/2, Phase 111, Industrial Estate,

Hattar, District Haripur (K.P.K}

12173, Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore.

Murree Glass

Plot No. 24, Phase 111, Industrial Estate,
Hattar, District Haripur (K.P.K)

Tel: 0995-617233, (995017188

DISTRIBUTION OFFICES

Tops Food & Beverages

121/3, Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore. (Tel: 042-5117501)

Aziz Chowk Pindi Bypass,
Cialla Soniea Industry, G.T.Foad,
Gujranwala (Tel: 035-3891571)

Mansoora Abad

MNear Sant Sing Railway Gate
Jumra Road, Faisalabad

Tel: (041-8522182 & 24203580)

164/B, Near Winter Time,
Small Industries Estate, Sahiwal
Mobile: 0335-3611125

Ratti Gali, Ayubia Road, Murree
Mob: 0335-5111047

(vi}

{i1)

Plot No. 28-B Smuall
Industrial Estate Opp,
Siddique kKantawala Main
Lahore Road, Sargodha
Mob: 0335-53611103

SHARE REGISTRAR

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

CDC House 99-B, Block ‘B’ SMCHS, Main
Shahra-c-Faisal Karachi-74400,

Tel: H92-21}111-111-500

Fax: H{92-21)1034326053, Email:info@cdesrsl.com

LEGAL ADVISORS
Hamid Law Associates,
409-410, Alfalah Building,
Shahrah-e-Quaid-e- Azam
Lahore, Tel; (42-6301501

Mr, Umer Abdullah { Advocate)

Chaudhary Law Associates

Advocate High Court

Flats No. 5 & 6, I* Floor, MICCOP Center,
. Mozang Road, Lahore,

Cell # 0300-8430477, 0345-8412222

(111} Mr. Muhammad Thvas Sheikh

(i)

{ii)

(111}

House Mo, 37, Street No. 02, Mohalla
Phase 5, Bahria Town, Islamabad.

TAX ADVISORS

Maseem Zafar Associates

[0-Commercial Building,
Shahrah-e-Quaid-c-Azam, Lahore.

Tel: 042-37314315-16

Sheikh Law Associates

(3 313316, Imran Mansion,

Giordon College Road, Rawalpindi,

Ph: 031-3770500 Website: www.sla.net.pk

M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants,

6™ Floor, State Life Bldg.
Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad.

CORPORATE ADVISOR

RS Corporate Advisory

First Floor, Plot No. 62, Central Commaercial
Area (CCA), Block-T, Phase -2, Defence
Housmg Authority , Lahore Cantt-Pakistan.
Tel: +92 42 357 47 904

Website: www.rscorporate.com
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Ch. Mueen Afzal
Chairman -Non Executive Director

Ch. Mueen Afzal after getting his MA Degree from Oxford University joined the Civil Service of
Pakistan in 1964, finally retiring from Government Service in 2002, While in service. he held several
important positions which included Finance Secretary in Balochistan (1981-84), Finance Secretary in
the Punjab (1984-86), Economic Minister in the Pakistan Embassy in Washington, . C, USA (1987-
090). Later, he was Health Secretary, Government of Pakistan (1995-96), Finance Secretary in
Islamabad (1996-1998) and Secretary Gieneral, Finance & Economic affairs from 1999-2002,

He was awarded Hilal-c-Imtiaz for distinguished public service in 2003 by the Government of
Pakistan,

After his retirement from the civil service, he held a number of appointments in the corporate sector.
At present, he is Chairman of the Board of Murree Brewery Company Ltd, and member of Audit and
Risk Management Committee as well as HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee, He was
Chairman of the Board of Pakistan Tobacco Company as well as the Chairman of Akzo Nobel

Pakistan,

He is a founder director of the Pakistan Centre of Philanthropy and on the Board of Beaconhouse
National University. Currently, he is the Chairman of the Langlands Endowment Trust, which raises
charitable funds for the Langlands school & college, located in Chitral.
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Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara
CEO/Director - Executive Director

Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara started his family business, Murree Brewery Co. Lid. Rawalpindi, one of
the oldest public limited companies of the sub-continent in 1997,

Joined Board of Directors of the company in 1998, Before this he has significant exposure to fields
operation including production, project development, development planning, conceptual engineering
and operation supports in the brewery and its other divisions.

In June, 2005 became Exccutive Directar till 2008, In June, 2008 was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Murree Brewery Group of Companies on the demise of his father.

The Company has also other divisions manufacturing food products, fruit juices, mineral water, non-
alcoholic products and glass containers. The traditional activities of the Company are brewing and
distilling of fine liquors and beers. With the passage of time the company has increased the product
lines and capacity as well.

s Holds a Master Degree in Business & Administration.

* Ex-Member of the National Assembly of Pakistan on seat reserved for Minorities (2013-
2018).
Currently President of Rawalpindi ParsiAnjuman.
Representing and helping following Minority communities of Pakistan Parsi, Sikhs, Baha'is,
Buddhists, Kalash and doing other social and welfare activities.
Attended various LUMS workshops on business,
Completed Directors’ Training Program from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.
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Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi graduated in Economies from USA and completed his OPM from
Harvard Business School, He has over 30 years of rich experience to his credit. He was the Chief
Executive of Atlas Honda Limited for over ten vears before becoming President of the Atlas Group
in July 2000.

He has also been associated with the following institutions:

Member Board of Directors, Lahore Stock Exchange

Member Board of Governors, LUMS, Lahore

Member Board of Governors, Aitchison College. Lahore

Member Board of Directors, Engineering Development Board
Member Syndicate, University of Engineering & Technology, Lahore

& 8 ® & & 8

Mr. Shirazi has been the Honorary Consul General of Japan, Lahore since 2002,




Annual Repart. 2023

Murree Frowery bempany Linilod
Beard of Directors

Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara

Non-Executive Director

Due to untimely death of Mr. M. P. Bhandara in June, 2008, Mrs. Goshi M Bhandara was invited

to join MBC Board against casual vacancy. Since then she is on the Board. She is also member

of Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha

Independent Director
He got his bachelor’s degree in finance from Indiana University, USA and an executive MBA degree
from NCB&E, Lahore. He has 24 years” experience of Insurance Industry in Pakistan. Currently he is
working as CEQ with Hellenic Sun Tnsurance Brokers (Pvt.) Lid. He served as director on the board
of Capital Investment Bank Ltd. in 2015-16. He also served as director on the Board of Samba Bank
Ltd, since 2015-16. He is an Honorary Consul General of Greece in Lahore since 2007,
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Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza

Independent Director

Mr. Mirza 1s a Masters of Commerce (M.Com) from University of Punjab, Lahore, and has also been
awarded an honorary doctorate degree by the Institute of Business Management, Karachi. He has
about 53 years of work experience.

Mr. Mirza served for about seven years in various positions in Investment Corporation of Pakistan
(ICP). and then for over 6 years in the Credit & Finance Corporation, a merchant bank in London,
Subsequently, for about two decades, he remained on the professional investment staff of the
International Finance Corporation (IFC) (Member, World Bank Group). Besides this, he has also
served as the founding Chairman of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (three years);
Sector Manager for Financial Sector Development, East Asia & Pacific Region, The World Bank,
Washington DC, USA (about four years). Chairman and Chiet Executive, Monopoly Control
Authority (one year); founding Chairman and Chiel Executive Competition Commission of Pakistan
(three years); and Member, Competition Appellate Tribunal (about eight months). Mr, Mirza joined
the Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS) in 2010 and is at present Professor of
Practice. Mr, Mirza is also an Independent Director and Chairman of the Board of both Orix Leasing
Pakistan Limited as well as the Board of AwwalModaraba, and an Independent Director on the
Boards of Silkbank and Murree Brewery Company Limited. Recently, he was appointed Chairman,
Securitics and Exchange Policy Board.

Significant among his regular consultancy assignments are Finance Consultant, WAPDA and
Evaluator, Investment Evaluation Unit, The World Bank Group.
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Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar

Independent Director

Mr., Akhtar graduated in 1976 from University of Punjab with majors in Economics, He later
attended an MBA program at School of Business and Commerce Islamabad and secured distinction
in Business Policy & Strategy and Human Resource Management, He completed his professional
training with Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler (KPMG) and passed Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (Inter) examination in 1981, In 1989 Mr. Akhtar was awarded a USAID
scholarship and he completed Petroleum Management Program at Arthur D. Little Tne Boston,
USA.

Mr. Akhtar is responsible for METRO's Corporate Affairs since 2007 including Public Policy, ESG
and Regulatory Affairs. Being part of the senior management team. he has contributed towards
successfully establishing the METRO Pakistan’s business in Pakistan. Prior to joining METRO, he
served as General Manager Corporate Affairs for a Dutch Multinational Company (SHV Energy) for
over 9 years, Mr, Akhtar has a versatile experience of more than 40 years of working with local and
multinational companies in Pakistan. During this period, he served in senior management positions in
the field of Finance. Human Resources, Procurement and Corporate Affairs. Mr. Akhtar is a Certified
Director from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. He is also the current President of
German-Pakistan Chamber of Pakistan. He has been an independent Director on the Board of
Directors of LOTTE Chemical Pakistan Limited for three terms spanning over 9 years and has served
as Chairman of the Audit Committee and Chairman of HR & Remuneration Committee.

Outside interesis:

Director Corporate Affairs METRO Pakistan (Pyr) Lid

Director Star Farm Pakistan (Pvt) Limited (METRO Group Company)

Director CABI-SFPK Joint Venture

Director CORE

President German-Pakistan Chamber of Commerce & Industry & Member Executive
Commuttee
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Ch. Wagar A. Kahloon

Company Secretary

Zaka Ullah Malik Muhammad Khurshid

Head of Internal Andit Chiet Financial Officer

10
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NOTICE OF 156"" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice 15 hereby given that the 156" Annual General Meeting of the Company (AGM) will be held at its
Registered Office, 3-National Park Road. Rawalpindi on Friday, October 20, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. to transact the
following business;

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopl the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the
Directors” and Auditor’s Reports for the year ended June 30, 2023, and Chairman’s Review Report.

2. Toapprove the payment of final cash dividend of 5084 i.e. Rs. 5/- per share of Rs. 10/- each. as recommended
by the Board of Directors. This is in addition to the interim dividend of 50% Le. Rs, 5/~ per share already
declared and paid to the sharcholders, thus, making a total cash dividend of 100% i.e. Rs, 10/~ per share for
the year ended June 30, 2023,

3. Toappoint Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration. The members are hereby notified that the
Audit & Risk Management Commitiee and Board of Directors have recommended the appointment of
retiring Auditors, M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company for the
year ending June 30, 2024,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

=

_._'_,_,.,--'"'
Rawalpindi Ch. Wagar A. Kahloon
September 26, 2023 Company Secretary
NOTES:

AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY'S WEBSITE:

The audited financial statements of the Company for the vear ended June 30, 2023 along with Directors” &
Auditor’s Report, Chainman’s Review Report, Motice of AGM and other related materials have been made
available on the Company's website, which can be downloaded’ viewed tfrom the following QR code and weblink:

CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS:

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for
registration from October 14, 2023, to October 20, 2023, (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at
“CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’. SM.CH.5., Main Shahrah-e¢-Faisal,
Karachi” at the close of business (3 p.m.) on October 13, 2023, will be treated in time for the purpose of
entitlement of cash dividend and to attend, speak and vote al the AGM,

RIGHT TO APPOINT PROXY:

A member is entitled to appoint @ proxy in his'her place to attend and vote instead of him/her. The instrument
appointing a proxy, duly stamped and signed, and the power of atlomey or other authority (il any) under which it
is signed or a notanally certified copy of the power of attorney or authority must be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, 3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi not later than 48 hours (excluding non-working days)
belore the time of the mecting. A proxy must be & member of the Company.

FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING:

i. [In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holders and/or the persons whose securities are in
group aecount and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate their
identity by showing their original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the
time of attending the meeting. 11
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ii. Incase of corporate entities, the Board of Directors” resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of
the nominees shall be produced {unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

FOR APPOINTING PROXIES:

I A member may appoint any member of the Company (w's 137(1){d) of the Companies Act. 20177 as a proxy
to attend and vote on his / her behalf, Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered
Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the meeting,

ii. Incase of individuals, the account halders or sub-account holders and/or the persons whose securities are in
proup account and their repistration details are uploaded as per the regulations. shall submit the proxy form as
per the above requirements.

iii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form,

iv. Attested copies of CNIC or the passporl of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form,

v. The proxies shall produce their original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

vi. In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors” resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of
the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity, shall be submitted (unless it has
been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company,

DEDUCTION OF RATES OF INCOME TAX FOR ACTIVE TAX PAYER AND NON-ACTIVE TAX
PAYER:

Under the provisions of Section 130 of lncome Tax Ordinance, 2001 rates of withholding income tax on dividend
will be as follows:

L. Rate of tax deduction for shareholders appearing in the Active Tax Pavers list 13%
it Rate of tax deduction for shareholders not appearing in the Active Tax Pavers list | 30%

In case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either active or non-active tax payer and tax
will be deducted on the basis of sharcholding of cach joint holder as may be notified by the shareholder, in
wriling as follows, 1o our Share Registrar, otherwise, each joint holder shall be assumed to have an egual number
of shares,

Principal Sharcholder Joint Sharcholder
Folio / CDS Total Name & g;:ﬂ?ﬁ?_:i:g Name & 5;:;;]:;3.'::&{
Account No, Shares | CNIC Mo, (No. of Shares) CNIC No. (No. of Shares)

The CNIC number / NTN detail 15 now mandatory and 15 required for checking the tax status as per the Active
Taxpavers List (ATL) issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) from time to time.,

EXEMPTION FROM DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX [ ZAKAT:

Members secking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate. are
requested o submit a valid tax exemption certificale or necessary documentary evidence as the case may be.
Members desiring nom-deduction of zakat are also requested to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction of
zakat.

12
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PARTICIPATION IN THE AGM THROUGH VIDEO-LINK:

The Company has arranged the facility for attending the meeting video link. To attend the meeting through video
link, the members and their proxies are requested (o register themselves by providing the following information
along with valid copy of CNIC / passport with the subject “Registration for Muorree Brewery Company
Limited AGM" through email al general.meetings@murreebrewery.com on or before October 17, 2023;

Mame of member CNIC N, CDC Account Cell Mumber | Email Address
No. Folio No.

The members who are registered after the necessary verification shall be provided a video link by the
Company on the same email address that are provided to the Company. The Login facility will remain open
from start of the mecting 1l 13 proceedings are concluded,

The shargholders who wish to send their comments/ suggestions on the pgenda of the AGM can email the
Company at general meetingsi@murrechrewery.com or WhatsApp at 0331-5880900. The Company shall
ensure that comments! suggestions of the shareholders will be read out at the meeting and the responses will
be made part of the minutes of the meeting.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS:
Members are requested to promptly notify any change of address 1o the Company’s Share Registrar “CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, Y9-8, Block ‘B, S.M.C.HL5., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi™,

PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE:

Section 242 of the Act requires that the histed companies shall pay cash dividend only through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the sharcholders. SECP vide its notification 8. R0, 1145 (12017 has
also issued the Companies {Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 whereby every shareholder shall be
responsible o provide valid information pertaining to its designated bank account to disburse any dividend
payable in cash only through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled
shareholders,

In this regard, the Company has already communicated through its letters addressed to the sharcholders
individually along with newspapers publications requesting to provide the lntemational Bank Accounts Number
(“IBAN™) designated by the shareholders to receive the cash dividends electronically. Hence, shareholders are
requested to Al the required felds of the Compuany's lelter available on website of the Company:
www.murrcebrewery.com and send the same to the Share Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, In case
of shares held as book-entry securities, the said information would be required to be provided to Central
Depository System (“CDS"), through CDS Participants.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND SHARE CERTIFICATES:

The Company has uploaded an updated list of shareholders on its website {(hitps:/www.murresbrewery.com)
whose dividends or share certificates are available with the Company which have remained unclaimed or unpaid
for a period of three years from the date these have become due and payvable.

Therefore, shareholders, who have not collected their dividend or shares certificates so far, are requested to
contact Company’s Share Registrar “CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B. Block “B’,
S.M.OC HS., Mam Shahrah-c-Faisal, Karachi o claim dividend or share certificates,

13
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

| am pleased to present the review for the year ended June 30, 2023, highlighting the
Company's performance and the role of the Board of Directors in guiding the management to
carry out its responsibility for the benefit of all its shareholders.

The Board recognizes that well-defined governance practices are critical in strengthening
corporate responsibility and is dedicated to achieving excellence in corporate governance
practices to conserve and sustain stakeholders’ value. All Directors, including the
Independent Directors, actively contributed to the Board’s decision-making processes.

The Board carried out its annual self-evaluation in line with best practices of corporate
governance and found its performance to be satisfactory. The focus remained on business
opportunities, risk management and providing oversight to the management. The Board’s
performance is reflected in the Annual Report for the financial year ended June 30, 2023,

The Board has outsourced the Company’s internal audit function to M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co.,
Chartered Accountants. Internal audit reports are presented to the Board's Audit & Risk
Management Committee on a quarterly basis,and the Intermmal Control Processes as well as
potential risks to the Company are regularly reviewed.

The Board meets frequently to adequately discharge its responsibilitics. The Board has
diligently performed its duties and responsibilities and has effectively guided the Company in
all its strategic affairs. The Board was essential in reviewing the management performance
and focusing on significant risk arcas. All the present directors are either duly certified or
exempted. The Company is fully compliant with the training requirements of management
and staff, as prescribed by the Regulator.

On behalf of the Board, | wish to acknowledge all our employee’s contributions to the
Company’s success. | also wish to thank our shareholders. customers, suppliers, bankers.
business partners, and other stakeholders for their confidence and support. The Board looks
forward to next year with greater confidence in meeting the challenges ahead.

A
i/ :
Aot
Ch. Muecen Afzal

Chaitrman

Rawalpindi
September 15, 2023

14
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DIRECTORS® REPORT
For the year ended June 30, 2023

The Board of Directors takes pleasure in presenting the Annual Report on the performanceand
progress of Murree Brewery Company Limited (*the Company”) together with the Annual
Audited Financial Statements for the vear ended June 30, 2023,

BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE COMPANY
The Company has completed 163 years of continuous operations and is one of the oldest
companies quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company continues with its policies to add value to shareholders, to invest in its employees

and processes and to improve quality of its products.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Overall Financial Overview & Highlights

Sales revenue (Net)
Gross Profit

Profit before Taxation
Profit after Taxation

Eamings per share

Increased by

Decreased by
Decreased by
Decreased by

Decreased by

22%

1 %o

3%

1.6 %o

1.6 %

from

from

from

from

from

Rs. in million

15,234 Lo
3,540 to
2,193 to
1.294 to
Rs.46.78 to

18,591

3,505

2,125

1.274

Rs. 46.04

The profit after tax of the Company slightly decreased under challenging operating
conditions which is a testimony to the dedication and commitment of the management.

ii.  Divisional Operating Results

The results of our divisions were:

a.  Liquor Division

2023 Yo 2022 Yo
Rs. in million Rs. in million
Sales exclusive of applicable taxes 14,684 11,639 |
Cost of sales (12,457 (B4.8) (9.171) | (T8.8)
Gross profit 2226 15.2 2,468 212
Operating profit 1.241 8.5 1,630 14.0

15



b. Glass Division

2023 Yo 2022 Yo
Rs. in million Rs. in million
Sales exclusive of applicable taxes 2,284 1,965
Cost of sales {1.479) (64.8) (1,450) {73.8)
Gross profit BOS 352 314 26.2
Operating profit 754 33 427 21.7
Glass Containers sales 26,650 | Metric Tons 31,077 | MetricTons
¢.  Tops Division
2023 %o 2022 %
Rs. in million Rs. in million
Sales exclusive of applicable taxes 4,460 4,150 |
Cost of sales (3,988) (89.4) (3.593) | (86.6)
Ciross profit 472 10.6 557 | 134
Operating (Loss) (290) (6.5) (63) | {(1.5)
IMPORTANT ISSUES:

i

ii.

Tax on water consumption for commercial use:

The Supreme Court of Pakistan announced taxation of the beverage industry (@ Re. 1 per
liter, which was later on reduced by Re. (.25 per liter as per provincial legislation relating to
the Punjab and KPK. A review petition filed by the beverage industry continues to be
subjudice before the honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. Tops & Murree Sparkletts
(Hatter) in line with the industry practice. have so far paid Rs. 3.5 million @ Re. 0.25 per
liter to the KPK Government,

Super Tax:

For FY 2022-23, super tax amount was Rs. 247 million.

For FY 2021-22, the Company filed a writ petition against the Super Tax amounting toRs.
227.4 million. The Islamabad High Court decided the case in favour of MBCL. The FBR
filed an intra-court appeal in Islamabad High Court against the decision. As per Supreme
Court direction, the Murree Brewery paid 50% of super tax liability amounting to Rs. 113.7
million to FBR.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended a final cash dividend of Rs. 5 per
share for the year ended June 30, 2023, bringing the full vear payout to Rs.10 per share (100 %-
previous vear 350%). This shall be subject to the approval of Shareholders at their meeting
scheduled on October 20, 2023.

16
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RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company’s main risks in the short term are the payment/demand of Late Payment Surcharge
(LPS) for rate differential of Sui Gas bills amounting to Rs. 130 million. The matter of LPS on
tariff was pending adjudication with OGRA. The Company has paid Rs. 29.4 million as LPS out
of Rs. 130 million demanded by SNGPL. OGRA disposed off the case on 18 November 2022,
and directed the petitioners to pay the principal amount of tariff differential for continuation of
gas supply on regular basis till the final disposal of the appeals related to Late Payment
Surcharge on tariff differential by the Supreme Court of Pakistan. The Company has paid
principal amount in full as per decision of OGRA. while Late Payment Surcharge has not been
paid as related appeals in Supreme Court of Pakistan are pending adjudication. This issue
concerns the entire industry which uses Sui Gas.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The total number of Company’s shareholders as at June 30, 2023, was 1268 against 1,226 on
June 30, 2022, The pattern of sharcholding as on June 30, 2023, and its disclosure is annexed,

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share for the vear ended June 30, 2023, is Rs. 46.04 as against Rs. 46,78 of preceding
vedr,

INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

The internal audit function has been outsourced to M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered
Accountants, a renowned firm and Head of Internal Audit has been appointed to coordinate with
them. He reports to the Audit & Risk Management Committee.

COMPANY’S RISK FRAMEWORK AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company envisions that risk management is a core component of the management of the
Company and, therefore, has developed a risk management program which comprises of a series
of processes, structures and guidelines that assist the Company to identify, assess. monitor and
manage its risks,

Further, the Company has clearly defined the responsibility and authority of management to
oversee and manage the risk management program in light of day-to-day needs of the Company.

The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee in order to promote effective risk
management and internal control systems and processes, The Committee provides regular reports
to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management program in identifying and addressing
material business risks.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Company conforms to the regulatory requirements on the composition and qualification of
the Board of Directors. As of June 30, 2023, the total number of directors was eight (0%).
Category wise composition of the Board was:

a. Male ! Six

b. Female : Two

17
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Category Names
a) Independent Directors Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
Mr., Pervaiz Akhtar
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

b) Non-Executive Directors Ch. Mueen Afzal
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara

¢) Executive Director Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara

d) Female Directors Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Audit & Risk Management Committee:

The Audit & Risk Management Committee performed its functions under the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations™) and
comprises of three independent directors and two non-executive directors as under:

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha - {Chairman)
Ch. Mueen Atzal - (Member)
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza - {Member)
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara - (Member)
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad - (Member)

The Chairman of Audit & Risk Management Committee was an independent Director.

HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee:
The HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee was constituted under the Regulations,
and comprised of two independent directors, an executive director and two non-executive
directors, The details of which are mentioned below:

Prof, Khalid Aziz Mirza - (Chairman)
Ch. Mucen Afzal . (Member)
Mr, Aamir Hussain Shirazi - {Member)
Mr, Isphanyar M, Bhandara - {(Member)
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar - (Member)

The Chairman of HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee was also an independent
Director.

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
The Directors state that;

18
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2. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023, prepared by the management
of the Company fairly present its state of affairs, the result of operations. cash flows and
changes m equity,

h. Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudemt
judgment,

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in the preparation of the financial statements.

¢, The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented.

f. There are no significant doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

g. There are no statutory pavments on sccount of taxes, levies and charges outstanding as on
June 30, 2023, except as disclosed in the financial statements,

h. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance a8
detailed in the listing regulations.

i. Key operating and financial data of the last six years in summarized form are annexed.

j»  The walue of the Provident Fund and Pension Fund (un-audited) investment at June 30,
2023, was Rs 178,97 million (Audited 2022:Rs. 159.24 million) and Rs. 87.52 million
(Audited 2022:Rs. 78.94 million) respectively.

k. During the year 2022-23, five (05) Board meetings, four (04) Audit & Risk Management
Committee meetings and three (03) HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee
meetings were held.

Attendance of members of the Board and its Committees are as under:

" AUDIT & RISK HR & REMUNERATION

NAME OF DIRECTGR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ANED NONINATION COMMITTEE
Ch. Mueen Afzal 315 44 313
Mr. [sphanyar M. Bhandara 415 02 (by invitation) 213
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi 305 - | 213
Mrs, Goshi M. Bhandara /5 /4 &
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza 5/5 4/4 313
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha 515 44 -
M. Pervaiz Akhtor 35 - 33
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad 45 34 -

Leave of absence was granted to the members who could not attend meeting(s).

ELECTIONS OF DIRECTORS
Elections of directors were held in the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company on July
24, 2023, and seven directors were unanimously elected unopposed for the next term of three
years effecting from July 27, 2023.

19
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DIRECTORS TRAINING PROGRAM

As at June 30, 2023, six out of eight directors are certified directors whereas the remaining two
directors are exempted. Hence, the Company is fully compliant with the Regulation No. 19(1) of
the Regulations.

BOARD PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
The Company conducted internally a Board Performance Evaluation in the financial year 2022-
23. This indicated that the Board broadly achieved the Company’s objectives during the year.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’” & OFFICERS' REMUNERATION

As per the requirements of the Regulations, there is a formal and transparent procedure in place
for fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors, No director is involved in deciding
his / her own remuneration.

The Board reviews the fee of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors for
attending the Board and committees meetings. which are subsequently presented to shareholders
in the Annual General Meeting for approval. Remuneration to Chief Executive Officer and
Directors are disclosed in note # 42 to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023,

The remunerations of Board's Officers have been approved by the HR & Remuneration
Committee.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017, and Companies (Related Party
Transactions and Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 20118, the Board of Directors
has approved the related party transactions upon the recommendations of the Audit Committee in
accordance with the policy approved by the Board.

TRADING OF SHARES

During the year under review, trades in the shares of the Company were carried out by Major
Shareholders which was communicated to the Regulators in due course. Besides this, no
Director, Executive or their spouses and minor children carried out trade in the shares of the
Company.

CHANGES TO THE MANAGEMENT

During the year under review, appointment of new Chief Financial Officer was made with the
approval of the Board. The Board 15 confident that the new team will continue to perform for the
growth of the Company.

CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION

The Company held the Corporate Briefing Session at its registered office on October 25, 2022,
wherein the management of the Company enlightened the participants about the Company’s
operation, financial performance and [uture prospects. The session was attended by investors and
other stakeholders, followed by an interactive question-and-answer session.

20
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CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER
During the vear under review, the Company contributed a sum of Rs. 6,692 million (previous
vear Rs, 4,847 million) to the Government exchequer on account of duties and taxes.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The Company has fully complied with the requirements ol the Regulations. A statement to this
eftect is annexed with this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company fully meets its obligation as a social corporate citizen, The Company always takes
constructive interest in social matters which may not be directly related to the business, and
makes donations to charitable mstitutions, hospitals and trusts, During the year 2022-23, the
Company has donated Rs. 3.1 million to various welfare & charitable organizations.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT & WELFARE SCHEMES

The Company continues to make available the use of its property to Association for Special
Persons (DARAKHSHAN), Presently 73 disabled women are getting training in this vocational
school for helping destitute handicapped women to be self-reliant, computer literate and
contributing members of society. This property has been provided free of charge by the
Company with furniture and fittings and the Company bears the cost of utilities and
maintenance.

WELFARE SPENDING FOR UNDER-PRIVILEGED CLASS
The Company continues to operate and support a Social Security Dispensary on its premises.
This caters the needs of workers and their families.

CORPORATE PHILANTHROPY
The Company continues to give donations to institutions in accordance with 1ts policies for
corporate philanthropy.

ENVIRONMENT, QUALITY, HEALTH & SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Company and its management are strongly committed to achieving sustainable
Environmental & Quality Management. The Company supports sustainable development and
promotes greater environmental responsibilities and has achieved Certification of 150
9001:2015, 45001:2018, 14001:2015. The Company continues to test emissions and effluents
through laboratories certified by Punjab Environment Protection Agency, The central lab of the
Company has been accredited by Pakistan National Accreditation Council (PNAC) on SO
17025:2017.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company is strongly committed to conductingits business in ways that provide all personnel
with a safe and healthy work environment. It has developed an HSE management system that
ensures worker safety. The Company’s systematic approach is to manage Occupational Safety &
Health under well-delined standards and requirements.
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The Company has integrated safe working practices by developing a rigorous set of operational
controls to manage all aspects of risk in s operations. Full implementation of these controls
ensures that the Company is providing a safe work place for its all employees.

ENERGY CONSERVATION

In order to utilize the natural resources in an effective and efficient manner, the Company has
installed Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs) which has resulted in electricity savings. The
Company has also switched electrical equipment/machines to energy ellicient devices. Further,
the Company has lowered the amount of electricity consumed by replacing GI sheets with fiber
sky sheets in its halls which allows natural sunlight to come across in the working areas.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MEASURES

The Company has adopted 3R’s of solid waste management (Reduce, Recover & Recycle) so
that the Company can manage our natural resources more efficiently and to dispose of toxic
waste material in a satisfactory manner. In this regard, the Company installed a Waste Water
Treatment Plant which is designed for treating the Company waste-water for its reuse or safe
disposal to the environment. Resultantly, the Company has reduced 1ts waste-waler wastage from
45.6% to 0%.

The Company has also framed environmental protection policy which promotes tree plantation,
pollution prevention, environment awareness sessions & trainings., water conservation and
various other steps to protect human health and environment. Further, the Company has arranged
events related to World Environment Day, Dengue Awareness Campaign, Smog Awareness
Seminar.

CONSUMER PROTECTION MEASURES

The Company has adopted and implemented various safety parameters for the production and
supply of its products as per applicable laws. These parameters are not only related to the safety
of its workers but are also linked with the safety of its consumer. The Company, in order to
promote best quality of its product. has labeled the awareness sticker on its product to break the
bottles after consumption in order to avoid bogus fillings or reuse of the bottles.

EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL PERSONS

The Company promotes equal employment opportunities for all kind of persons without any
discrimination and disabilities. Currently 20 workers/staft with different disabilities are employed
in the Company which is more than the quota fixed by the government authorities.

BUSINESS ETHICS AND ANTI-CORRUPTION MEASURES

The Company conducts its business with integrity and in accordance with high standards of
ethical behavior and in compliance with laws/regulations that governs the operations of the
Company. In this regard, the Company has prepared and implemented the Code of Conduct
which covers business ethics, transparency, fairness, professionalism, conflict of interest,
workplace harassment, equal opportunity environment, ete.

Further, the Company has also prepared and approved the Whistle blowing Policy to encourage
individuals to reveal and report any kind of matters which, in their opinion, may cause potential
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financial or reputational loss to the Company. This policy also degrades wrong doing, fraud.
bribery, discrimination, black mailing, stealing and other activities in order to mimimize the
chances of corruption. However, as per policy Company will not entertain anonymous
complaints/letters.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Audit of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2023,has been concluded and
the Auditors have issued their Audit Reports on the Company’s financial statements and Review
Report on the Statement of Compliance with the Regulations. The Auditors M/s, KPMG Taseer
Hadi & Co. shall retire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, and being eligible have
offered themselves for re-appointment for the financial year 2023-24. The Board proposes their
appointment as Auditors for the financial vear ending June 30, 2024, on the recommendation of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee. This shall be subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on October 20, 2023,

OUTLOOK

Business environment of the Country has become very challenging because of massive currency
devaluation, spiraling inflation, high interest rates and new super tax rates. However, the
Company remains committed to providing high quality products to its consumers and to improve
shareholders values.

The coming months present unprecedented challenges and uncertainties with continuing political
instability, exchange rate volatility and high inflation. In view of the unpredictable economic
environment, the Company’s management remains alert in their endeavor to continue to bring
the best possible value to their shareholders.

APPRECIATION

We express our pleasure for the continued dedication and efforts of the employees of the
Company. Our thanks are also extended to our customers, suppliers, bankers, advisors,
shareholders and various government departments for their continuous support.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

—

Isphanyar M. Bhandara Pervaiz Akhtar
Chief Executive Officer Director
Rawalpindi

September 15, 2023
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NET SALES vs PROFIT AFTER TAX COMPARISON

EARNINGS PER SHARE vs CASH DIVIDEND COMPARISON
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MURREE BEREWERY COMPANY LIMITED

Pattern of Shareholding

As of lune 30, 2023

| # Of Shareholders | Shareholdings' Slab | Total Shares Heid |
463 1 to 100 16,630
347 101 to 500 86,693
126 501 to 1000 94,679
167 1001 to 5000 390,729
64 5001 to 10000 455,880
21 10001 to 15000 260,174
20 15001 to 20000 351,087
11 20001 to 25000 241,549
2 25001 to 30000 55,308
a 30001 to 35000 127,220
5 5001 to 40000 190,282
1 40001 to 45000 43,700
3 45001 to 50000 142,057
2 20001 to 230040 102,240
1 55001 to 60000 56,954
2 60001 to 65000 120,505
1 F0001 to #5000 72,706
1 80001 to 85000 82,923
2 85001 to S0000 177,558

1 125001 to 130000 125,285
1 145001 to 150000 146,884
1 155001 to 160000 156,487
1 160001 to 165000 160,761
1 195001 to 200000 195,320

1 245001 to 250000 250,000
1 300001 to 305000 304,060
1 315001 to 320000 319,441
1 365001 to 370000 369,589
1 420001 to 425000 420,232
1 455001 to 460000 457,040
i 465001 to 470000 469,503
1 470001 to 475000 470,060
1 500001 to 505000 500,008
1 635001 to 640000 637,990

1 675001 to 680000 678,516
1 720001 to 725000 720,815
1 875001 to 880000 879,149
1 895001 to 900000 895,100
1 S70001 to 975000 971,700
1 1000001 to 1005000 1,000,074
1 1700001 ta 1705000 1,701,527
1 3170001 to 3175000 3,174,540
1 4030001 to 4035000 4,030,810
i 5555001 to 5560000 5,559,825

1268 27,663,630
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MURREE BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED
Pattern of Sharehalding Report
As of June 30, 2023

Categorles of Shareholders Shareholders Sharas Held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minar children
MF. 15PHANYAR M BHANDALRA ] & 603,280 i, 54
MRE. JASMINE BHANDARA 2 334,211 L.21
MRS, GOSHI B BHANDARA 1 1,000,074 162
MR, AAMIR HUSSAIN SHIRAZI 1 3084 iRk
M5 JAHANARA SAHAD AHMAD 1 1,000 Qo0
CH. MUEEN AFZAL 1 3,452 0.0t
MR SHAHEAZ HATDER AGHA 1 217E 0.0
MR KHALID AZEE BAIRLA, 1 1,200 o.0n
MR, PERVAIL AKHTAR 1 1,000 Q.00
Assaciated Companies, undertakings and related parties q 9,451,713 3417
NIT & ICP : L] 0.0
Banks Developmaent Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions. 2 17,143 0.0E
Insurance Companies F 1,007 5759 164
Madarabas and Mutual Funds ] 174,483 063

General Public
a. Local 1,155 2,734 L H
b Forgign 43 1,798,445 4659
Isnmp Companies 3 6,799,195 24 58
Dihers 34 230,007 B3
Tatal 1,268 27 663,630 10000
Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Hold Percentags

MR, FAMSHED M. BHANDARA 2,900,687 D48
MR 15PHANYAR KL BHANDARS 4,603,280 16.64
C.P. EDULI & COMPANY {PYT) LIMITED 4,909,955 17,75
KINGSWAY FUND-FRONTIER CONSLIMER FRANCHISES 6,029,885 21.80
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Pattern of Shareholding Report
As of June 30, 2023
BN, Falig # Mame of sharehaldsr Mumber of shares k]
Dérectars, Chiel Evecutive Officar and their spouisds] ard misar childroan
1 aodaz PR ISEEANYAR M BHANDARS 3,174, %40 11.48
2 26113249 PAR, ISPHARNYAR A BHANDARS a7L.M0 351
3 04T0S5-HI01E MR, I5PHANYAR M, BHANDARA 457,040 1,65
4 ZEH10E3 BARS. LASMINE BHANDARS 218,441 1.15
5 O4705-59004 MRS, 1ASABAIRE BHANDARY 14,770 0.05
[ 261123 MRS GOISH| M BHANDARA 1,000,074 3.62
] O32TTA07233 BAF. AAMER HUSEAIN SHIRAZI 3084 0.ol
] DE122-16T3E7 BAS JAMAMARSL SAIAD AMBAD 1,080 .00
a 3525-11860 CH, BMLEEMN AFZAL 3.852 .o
10 DI535-1081503  MA. SHAHBAZ HAIDER AGHA 1i7e 0.o1
11 Oda0a-2 raa0 PR, EHALID AZEF PMIRSA 1200 0.00
12 D5260-140165 MR, PERVAIZ AXHTAR 000 0,00
12 5,843,878 2151
Assoiated companies, undertakings and refated parties
1 261121 BAR, ZAME ISPHANYAR BHANDARA SO0.00E 1.8l
3 130083 5. MUNIZEH M. BHANDARA, 720,815 .61
E| 130913 BAS MLINLEAH B BHANDARA & MRS GOSHI M BHANDARS 430,337 152
i 261122 MR LAMEHED MO0 BHANDAAA, MAS. GOEHT M. BHANDARA & MA. ISPEANYAR M. BHANDARS 304,060 L1
3 63125 SR LARSHED RSO0 BHAMTARA, MRS, GOIHE M, BHANDARA & MA ISPHENYAR 8 BHANDERA 1, 701537 E.15
;] (1 P05- 1081 T AL UARASHED B BAGAN CUEA THROUGH MANAMGERAGIMATHAN GO5H| BISPHANTAR 895, 100 1714
7 40024 BAd5. [P, EDUILN B O {PYT) LTD,, 4,030 810 1457
L] O3525-0R607 M5, D0P, EDULIL RO, (PVTLTR,, BT, 149 318
3 261064 SR, SASIH UR REHRAN 1z 0.00
5 9,451,718 3417
HIT & TP
1 0013 BASS INVESTRENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 430 000
2 ODDE3-36 DL (0P LINIT) i o.on
2 438 .00
Banks Development Fnancial insstions, Mon Bankng Finsncial Institutions
1 0047 WSS, RANE OF BRHAWALPUAR LTD., 5 A0 B.o2
2 0412728 MCE BANE LIMITED - TREASURY 11,341 0.04
!‘ 17,143 .06
Insuranss Companisy
1 U3TT-2184 EFU GENERAL INSURAMNCE LEMITED 537,580 241
2 13748-501 ADAKIEE UFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LTD-IMF 365,589 1.34
2 1,007,575 1.64
haodarabas amd Mutuad Fuids
1 05371-28 COC - THUSTEE MCE PAKISTAN STOCK BAANKET FLUND 150,761 058
7 06411-21 COC - TAUATEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FLIND 3,072 ool
| 1136323 COC - TAWSTEE MCE PAKISTAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 10,650 0.04
5 174,883 0,63
Ghunmral Public Formign
1 10004 BAH. AHMAL ABOUL HEHRAN NOOR AHRAD BhG2 0.03
2 30016 SIRC . GARBETT 2454 0.01
3 SOMDOG BAR ERRAHIM SALIFE BEAA 17,194 D.0E
4 50009 MISS. E. ML OWILSDN 1%,113 o.07
5 TS DR, G KL San Dy 30,050 011
L1 ann17 BAR. H. LE. GEYT KENSINGTON E.5&0 o.n3
7 RODAS MA. H. LMD CHRISTRAMSEN 60,472 o2
] q0009 MISS LML ST GEORGE BRETT 2434 0.0t
a9 an011 BARL 1HL T BADSS 157 ool
1] 100003 MA. |, C, BURBINGE I5.A12 0o.o%
1% 100029 BAR- 1. M. KEADY raas .03
12 12055 BAR. JOHE STUART OLIWVER 2,81 001
13 11002 RS, K. B WILLLAR 36,165 013
14 110022 BARL KASSING & MOHAKBAD 5072 o.o2
15 13001 BAISS. LUCY CHARLES 1.340 .00
ib 120404 MA. W, L KIRELY 756 .00
17 130008 BARAS. M, . CALITLEY A2.523 030
18 1340448 MR ML A nDGHAL 11,138 0.4
1% 140054 MR, NAJURUDDIN MULLAH HARMIABHAI B,560 .03
30 160015 MAS. P, SAWDAY 17,194 0.08
i 160036 AR PETER JOHN SARGENT a41 0.00
22 1mdai2 MR RICHARD ANTHOMEY B SCOTT B.560 0.03
13 160179 BAR. RALFH 106N HARILTON POLLOCK 758 0.00
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MURREE BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED
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11 180048
15 150041
6 210001
27 280005
28 00521-5550
b=} 03277-106302
30 03277-106485
ES 03277106314
12 03277109110
33 03277-114733
E2 ] 03277115344
5 03277115886
k73 03377-117650
3T 03277-118908
£ 03277119259
EH 03277-121068
40 03277-121661
a1 n3277-123119
42 03277174085
£3 06E01-32103
Foorgiigh Comgnrsiis
1 20077
2 00521-6830
3 00521-13356
4 00547:8753
5 0054710361
6 Q0EAS-10781
Othars
L 20041
2 20037
g 140075
F 1B0019
5 200006
[: 0191741
7 0321028
8 03¥77-5164
E 13277-13154
1B 03277-61491
1 G327 790529
12 0329312
13 03525-57191
14 03525-63416
15 (352563817
16 03525-66812
17 03939-52
8 0415025
13 G7418.17065
b1} 07450-1040
11 OBEA7-1447
7 12666-700
23 126661831
1 12666-1845
5 12665-1856
b2 12665 1854
) 12666-1872
18 12665-1880
b2 12665-2045
£ 13748950
£ 14241-22
32 1474621
33 15727-21
14 1812821
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MURREE BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED

Pattern of Sharcholding Report
Bs ol June 30, 2023

M i r Blumbor of 5
MR, R E- AL CALITLEY 146,834 0.53
BAR. SALEH MUMHAMBAD HAIEE AYLIB 56,554 0.1
DR, UNA DAVISON 17222 a.0e
MAKSS, FLIBEIDG, ESS0P PALA 13,592 .05
GREGORY ALEMANDER 678516 245
Rizwan Sheriff 200 .00
SYED ATHILE BUEHARI 1o (RREH
BALHARMMAD FiaZ 1035 0,080
BALHAMMAD CA5184 200 0.0y
SAOLAIN HAIDER a0 0.00
Zashan Zahid 450 0,00
JEETEMDAR ELNMAR 550 .08
BAUHAMBMAD MAZIRA AMEER CHALIDHRY ka0 0.DD
MAJEED ULLAH DURREAMI 22,800 0.08
HINA IRRAM 40 .00
Bubarmmad Matiullah Gahar 1040 .00
HISHORE GIR 12 0.o0
FALHAMMAD LISAMA AFZAAL 200 0.00
BALIHARMMAD LInAIR 1o .00
JA1 HEBAMAMNE 450 0.00

43 1,298,445 a,69
S HONGEONG BANE INTER (TRUSTEE] LTD. 1,810 n.oy
PAILLVILLE OPPORTUMITIES MASTLR FUND LP 250,000 0.
TEMCORE || FARTHERS LP 4B a0 0iy
EINGSWAY FLIND-FRONTIER CONSUMER FRANTHISES 5,508,825 2010
KINGESWAY FLUMND-FRONTIER CONSUMER FRANCHISES EXTORA A470,060 1
SCB NOMNINEES (C1] LIWITED [1250-2] 459,503 LTD

B B, 794,198 24,58
BASS, BUSINESS INVESTMENTSLTD. a1 0.00
BASS.H. M. INVESTMENTS (PYT] LTD 96 n.on
bS5, N H, SECURITIES (FVT)LTD, 14 0,00
BASG, AW ALPINDI ELECTRIC POWER CO, LTO. 31,Mae 0,01
BA/5. THE DEPUTY ADBMINISTRATOR {4/C DAL T. H. KHAN} 4,798 .oz
PRUDENTIAL SECLIRITIES LIMITED E8G ooon
.5, SECUIRITIES & SERVICES (PVT) LTD, a8 0.00
TRUSTEES KANDAWALLA TRLUST 20,278 o.o7
TRUSTEES HOMMIESIAMEHED NUSSERWANIEE T 5,580 o.o2
BASS RAMG CORMBODITIES (FVT) LTD 10,350 0.0
FIKREE MEVELOFMENTS CORFORATION [FRIVATE] LIMITED G0 0.03
S H. BUKHAR] SECURITIES (PYT) LIMITED a454 .00
SARFRAZ MAHRMDOD |PANVATE] LTD Qi 0.on
H M INVESTMENTS (FT] LIMITED 2870 0o
BH SECURITIES [PYT) LIMITED. 392 0,0
TEUSTEES MESTLE PAKISTAN LTD EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 50,000 0.14
PEARL SECRUAITIES UIMITED 5.250 n.o2
FRIENDLY SECURITIES (FYT) LTD B.700 oo
ATC HOLDANGS (PRIVATE} LIMITED E050 .o
TREUSTEE-FIRST DaWOOD [NV, BANE LTD. & OTHER EMPOLYEES P.FUND 460 .00
Crescant Standard Business Management {Pyt) Limitad i o.o0
I5F1 Caranration | Private) Limked =0 .00
THUSTEE PAKISTAN PETROLELIM SENOIR PROVIDENT FLIND 13,850 0.0%
TRUSTEE PAKISTAN FETROLEUM RON-EXECUTIVE STAFF PEMSI0MN FUMND 18,050 0.o7
THUSTEE PAKISTAN PETROLELIM MON-EXECUTIVE STAFF GRATUTTY FUND 6100 .02
THUSTEE PAKISTAN PETROLELIM IUNIGR PROVIDENT FUND 8,50 0,03
TRUSTEE PAKISTAN PETROLEUIM EXECUTIVE STAFF PEMSION FUMD g 700 014
TRUSTEE PAKISTAN PETROLEUN EXECUTIVE STAFF GRATUITY FUND 4,500 ooz
TRUSTEE PAK. PETROLEUM EXEC, STAFF PEN, FUND DT CONVENTIOMAL 2850 0o
TRLSTEE- GUL AHMED TEXTILE MILLS LTD, EMP. PROVIDENT FUKD 4,200 0.0
FIKRELS [FRIVATE} LIMITED 1,766 0.0t
ETRADE SECURITIES LIMITED 1 n.on
C0C - TRUSTEE PARISTAN PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 14,500 .05
CREIT SECLIRITIES (PRIVATE] LIMITED a0 .06

34 230,007 0,83
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Foreword

Murree Brewery Company Ltd ("MBC") has built a reputation for conducting its business with integrity, in
accordance with high standards of ethical behavior, and in compliance with the laws/regulations that
govern our business. This reputation is among our most valuable assets and ultimately depends upon
the individual actions of each of our employees all over the country.

The MBC code of conduct has been prepared to assist each of us in our efforts to not only maintain but
enhance this reputation. It provides guidance for business conduct in a number of areas and references
to more detailed corporate policies for further direction.

The code of conduct applies to all affiliates, employees and others who act on our behalf countrywide,
within all sectors, regions, areas and functions.

The adherence of all employees to high standards of integrity and ethical behavior is mandatory and
benefits all stakeholders viz our customers, our communities, our shareholders and ourselves.

It carefully checks for compliance with the code by providing suitable information, prevention and
control tools and ensuring transparency in all transactions and behaviors by taking creative measures if
and as required.
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General Principles

Compliance with the laws, regulations, statutory, ethical integrity and fairness, Is a constant
commitment and duty of all MBC employees and its divisions.

MBC business and activities have to be carried out in a transparent, honest and fair way, in good faith,
and in full compliance. Any form of discrimination, corruption, forced or child labor is rejected.
Particular attention is paid to the acknowledgement and safeguarding of the dignity, freedom and
equality of human beings.

All MBC employees, without discrimination or exception whatsoever, respect the principles and
contents of the code in their actions and behaviors while performing their functions and according to
their responsibilities, because compliance with the code is fundamental for the quality of their working
and professional performance. Relationships among MBC employees, at all levels, must be characterized
by honesty, fairness, cooperation, loyalty and mutual respect.

The belief that one is acting in favor or to the advantage of MBC can never, in anyway, justify—not even
in part-any behavior that conflicts with the principles and content of the code.

The MBC Code of Conduct aims at guiding the “MBC Team™ with respect to standards of conduct
expected in areas where improper activities could result in adverse consequences to the company, harm
its reputation or diminish it competitive advantage. Every member of the MBC is expected to adhere to,
and firmly inculcate in his/her everyday conduct; this mandatory framework; any contravention or
deviation will be regarded as misconduct and may attract disciplinary action in accordance with the
Company services and relevant laws.
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Ethics, Transparency, Falrness, Professionalism

In conducting its business MBC is inspired by and complies with the principles of loyalty, faimess,
transparency, and efficiency.

Any action, transaction and negotiation performed and generally, the conduct of MBC employees in the
performance of their duties is inspired by the highest principles of fairness, completeness and
transparency of information, clarity and truthfulness of all accounting documents in compliance with the
applicable laws in force and internal regulations.

Bribes, illegitimate favors, request for personal benefits of one or others. Either directly or through third
parties, is prohibited without any exception.

It is prohibited to pay or offer, directly or indirectly, money and material benefits and other advantages
of any kind to third parties, whether representatives of governments, public officers or private
employees, in order to influence or remunerate the actions of their office.

Accepting gifts or any other form of hospitality Is not allowed as commercial courtesy, as it may
compromise the Integrity and reputations of either party, and can be constructed by an impartial
observer as aimed at obtaining undue advantages. Only company give aways are acceptable.

Company Information

MEBC ensures the correctness of company’s information, by means of suitable procedures for in-house
management and communication to the outside.
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Conflict of Interest
MBC expects all employees to be free from actual or potential conflicts of interest.

A conflict of interest occurs whenever the prospect of direct or indirect personal gain may influence or
appear to influence your judgments or actions while conducting Company’s business.

Each member of MBC has a prime responsibility towards the Company and is expected to avoid
activities or transactions that clash directly with the interests of the Company. Such situations could
arise in a number of ways. Some of the specifically forbidden situations are outlined below. This list is
however, neither exhaustive nor all-inclusive. Incase of doubt, the advice of the management or Chief
Executive should be sought.

Any member of the MBC or any dependent member having an interest in any organization supplying
goods or services to the Company.

Any member of the MBC participating in any external activity directly or indirectly that competes with
the Company in any manner.

Any member of the MBC having direct, indirect interest or family connection, with an external
organization that has business dealings with MBC, without fully disclosing to the management of the
Company details of such connections and interests.

Any member of MBC having any relative working with MBC and not disclosing details of the same to the
management of the Company.
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Confidentiality

A member of MBC shall not keep or make copies of correspondence documents, papers and records, list
of clients or customers without the prior approval.

A member of MBC shall not disclose or reveal any information on the behalf of the Company to
print/electronic media as well as any other information medium. All information shall be released
through/by the Marketing department or designated individual (s).

Agreement with Licenses, Distributors, Agents, Sales Representatives, Suppliers or Consultants

Agreements with above shall clearly specify the services to be performed for the Company, the amount
to be paid or receipts and all other relevant terms and conditions.

All payments or receipts and transactions shall be supported by documents.
Workplace Harassment

Every employee has the right to work in an environment that is free from harassment and in which
issues of harassment will be resolved without fear of reprisal. Harassment will not be permitted or
condoned within MBC whether it is based on a person’s race, color, ethnic or national origin, age,
gender, real, or suspected sexual orientation, religion or perceived religious affiliation, disability, or
other personal characteristic.

MBC demands that there shall be no harassment in personal working relationships either inside or
outside the Company. Such behaviors are strictly forbidden and are as follows:

# (Creation of an intimidating, hostile, isolating or in any case discriminatory environment for
individual employees or groups of employees

& Unjustified interference in the wok performed by others

# Placing of obstacles in the way of the work prospects and expectations of others merely for
reasons of personal competitiveness or because of other employees

e Proposing private interpersonal relations despite the recipient’s explicit or reasonably clear
distaste

37



Murree Browery Company Lipiled

Equal Opportunity Environment

MBC recognizes the value of striving for a balanced work force and is committed to the principles of
equal opportunity, equality of treatment, and creating a dynamic climate where diversity is valued asa
source of enrichment and opportunity.

All phases of the employment relationship-including, recruitment, hiring, training, promotion,
compensation, benefits, transfers, layoffs, and leaves of absences-will be carrled out by all managers
without regard to race, color, religion, gender, age, ethnic or national origin or disability.

Protection of Company Assets and Proprietary Information

Confidential information is any information that is not publically known and that has value to
MBC. It may be in written, electronic, or any other form.

It Is duty of each member of the MBC to protect, use and operate all the corporate assets with utmost
care, due diligence and honesty. In case It Is observed by any member of the MBC that the corporate
assets are being misused/ mishandled by some other members / individuals the matter should be
immediately reported to the Management of the Company. Corporate assets include moveable and
immovable property of the Company.

Dealing in Securities/Shares & Insider Trading
MBC employees must not deal in MBC shares on the basis of privileged information.

MBC employee are forbidden to convey inside information at any time to other person or encourage another
person to deal in shares of MBC or any other Company on the basis of such information, even if the
employee does not profit directly from the arrangement.

MBC employee should be aware of and comply with any local laws and regulations governing shares
dealings,in case any employee or his / her spouse deals in the Company’ s shares, he / her must notify
the Company Secretary with full particulars within two days from the date of the transaction.

END
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Murree Brewery Company Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Carporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) orepared by the Board of Directors of Murree Brewery
Company Limited for the year ended 30June 2023 inaccordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of
the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review [s limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach, We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal contral
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal contrals, the
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations reguire the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committes, place befare the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of

Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June2023.

gty Tames Wt Ace.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Islamabad
21 September 2023

UDIN: CR202310245M73zVKOXa
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

Murree Brewery Company Limited
For the vear ended June 30, 2023

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-
1. The total number of directors are eight (08) as per the following:

a) Male : si1x (6)
b) Female : Two (2)

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Names
a) Independent Directors Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

b) WNon-Executive Directors Ch. Mueen Afzal
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi
Mrs, Goshi M, Bhandara

¢) Executive Director Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara

d) Female Directors Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies. including this Company:

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures:

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been

taken by the Board/sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2017 and this Regulations;
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10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

Annual Repert. 2023
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The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of dirgctors in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and this Regulations;

Out of eight directors, two directors meet the exemption requirement of Directors” Training
Program and six directors have obtained the Directors’ Training Program certification in prior
years,

The Board has approved appointment of Chiel Financial Officer. Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board:

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit and Risk Management Committee

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha - {Chairman)
Ch. Mueen Afzal - {Member)
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza - {Member)
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara - {Member)
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad - (Member)
b) HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza - {Chairman)
Ch. Mueen Afzal - {Member)
Mr. Aamir Hussain Shirazi - {Member)
Mor. Isphanyar M. Bhandara - {Member)
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar - {(Member)

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committees for compliance;

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/vearly) of the committees during the year 2022-
23, were as per following:

{a) Audit and Risk Management Committee — 04,
(b} HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee — 03,

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered

Accountant, who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;
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17.

18.
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The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan and that they and
the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse. parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the Chiet Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit, Company Secretary or any director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 this Regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC

guidelines in this regard;

We confirm that all the requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

e __K

Isphanyar M. Bhandara Pervaiz Akhtar
Chief Executive Officer Director
Rawalpindi

September 15, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of Murree Brewery Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Murree Brewery Company Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, and the statement of profit or loss,
the staternent of comprehensive incoma, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the bast of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive incoma, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows togather with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2007 (XX of 2017}, In the mannsr so required and respectively aive a true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2023 and of the profit, the comprehansive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as applicable In
Pakistan, Our responsibilities under those standards are further descrbed in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financlal Statements section of our report, We arg independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the |nstitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the cument period. These matters were addressad in the contaxt of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

43



Annual Report: 2023

Murree Srvwery Cetipany Liniled

S. No. | Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
1 Revenue recognition
Qur audit procedures In this area included,
Refer notes 4.14 and 31 to the among others:
financial statements.
= obtaining an understanding of the process relating
During the year ended 30 June 2023, to recognition of revenue and testing the design
the Company recognised net revenue and implementation and operating effectivenessof
of Rs. 18,591 million from sale of food of key internal contrals over recording ofrevenue;
and beverages.
* comparing a sample of revenue transactions
We identified recognition of revenue recarded during the year wilth sales orders sales
as a key audit matter because invoices, delivery documents and other relevant
revenue is one of the key performance underlying documents,
indicators of the Company and gives
rise to an inherent risk that revenue * comparing a sample of revenue transactions
could be subject to misstatement to recorded before and after the year-end with the
meel expeclalions or largels. sales orders, sales invoices, delivery documents
and other relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue was recorded inthe
appropriate accountingperiod,
= comparing the details of a sample of journal
entries posied to revenue accounts during the
year, which met certain specific nisk-basedcriteria,
with the relevant underlyingdocumentation,
= assessing whether the accounting policies far
revenue recognition comply with therequirements
of the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan;and
= evaluating the adequacy of presentation and
disclosures related to revenue as requiredunder
the accounting and reporting slandards as
applicable inPakistan.
2 Revaluation of Property, Plant and Our audit procedures in this area included,

Equipment

Rafer notes 9 and 17 to the financial
statements.

During the year, the Company
recognized surplus aggregating to

among others:

involving cur valuation specialist to support us in
evaluating the appropriateness of valuation
methodology and assessing the reasonablenessof
key estimates and assumptions used inthe
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5. No. | Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Fs. 371 million on revaluation of valuations conducted by the professional valuer
land, buildings, plant, machinery engaged by the Company,
and equipmeant carried out at 30
June 2023, = ayaluating the accuracy of information providedby

lhe Company to professional valuer by inspecting

We identified the revaluation of underlying documentation,
operating fixed assets as a key audit
matter due to significance of the * gssessing the appropriateness of accounting of
amount of revaluation surplus in revaluation surplus and related adjustments in the
ralation to the financial statements. financial statements in accordance with the

accounting and reporting standards as applicablain
Pakistan;and

= evaluating the adequacy of presentation and
disclosures related to revaluation of property,plant
and equipment as required under the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable inPakistan.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the year ended 30 Jung 2023, but does nol include the financial
statements and our auditors” report therean,

Clur oninion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon

In eonniection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Beard of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management ig responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control a5 management determines is necessary
1o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement. wheather due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, malters related lo going concern and using the
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going concern basis of accounting unless management eithar intends to liquidate the Company or fo cease
operations; or has no realistic alttemative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
migstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs as applicable In Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our oplnion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations or the override of internalcontrol.

=  Obfain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design auditprocedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's intermalcontrol.

=  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting
estimates and related disclosures made bymanagement.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accountingand,
based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions thal may cast significant doubl on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the refated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audil evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
goingconcern.

=  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whethar the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin
a manner that achieves (alrpresentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in inlernal contral
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that we identify during our audit,

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independenca, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial staternents of the cumrent period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated im our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a} Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X
of2017);

b} the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with thenotes

therson have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017 and are in
agreement with the books of account andretums;

¢} investments made. expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were forthe
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d} zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 XV of 1980), was

deductedby the Company and deposited in the Central £akat Fund established under section 7 of
thatOrdinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Muhammad Danish,

lig e Tewermers’ Hrds Acs,

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Islamabad
21 September 2023

UDIN:AR202310245sBeFoPSNA
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Murree Brewery Cempany Lailed

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2023

20523 .1 2
Miste {Hes. " iy (s, (00

TURNIOWER - Met 3l 18,591,183 15234318
COST OF SALES i (15.087,084) (10,654 003
GROSS PROFIT 1504094 3540315
Selhng and distnbution expenses 33 {1,150,385) {1.165223)
Administrative expenses 34 {619,450 {50005k
Other expenses kL {145,330 {160,254)
Other meome 3o 157 130,306
Allowance lor soparment loss on rade debis il 1635) [207)
DOPFERATING PROFIT 1,704,580 1 H534.281
Finanee cost 37 (10,335) [ 15,604y
Fingnee incoms 38 430,420 JTR.T50
NET FINANCE INCOME 420,045 359,147
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1124665 2,193,428
Income tox expense 9 (BS0.9Th) {85 320
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,273,689 |, 254, 105

223 2022
Enrnings per shure - basic and diluted (Rupees) 4 46,04 46078

The anmexed notes | to 51 form an integml part of these finpncial staternents.

-7 ey
{CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Maurree Brewery Company Liniled

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive inceme

fremy thar will nor be reclassified to profiv or foss
Remeasurement on delined benelit plan lhability - graruity
Remeasurement on defined benefii plan azsel - pension

surplus on revalustion of property, plant and dquipment

Ribmed tax
Other compretensive income Tor the vear - met of Gix

Tatal comprehensive income for the vear

The antexed netes | w0 3] form an integeal part oF these: Dnascial statoments.

Ml

12.1.3
12.2.6

223 2022

s, ) [ Bs. Uik
L2768 1,204, 108
22,787 3.178
5011 7303
AT1.256 462 (673
402054 473,644
(109,581) {122,973
292,473 350,666
1,566,162 1 644,774

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Murree reuery Cempany Liniled

Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 30 June 2023

1023 222
CASH FLOMWS FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES Murte (R, 1 (s KT}
Prafit be lore ax 2124 668 2,183 426
Adjustments Tor;
Emmphryee henelits = charge so profit o loss 1Z12& 1224 51,958 42,720
Dwprecmbion 1703 & 1K1 44,945 Al
Amierzation 11 161 519
Provision for show moving mventocies 34 1500 434671
Provision fun workers poolit participation fumd 35 90,876 CREHIE]
Provision for workers” welfnn: fund a5 45,215 43870
Crzss triIT differential 14 - ]
Prowistan for wider tax 14 44,500 932,596
Ciaim on rermeaswremaent of mvesment proserty o fmir valug 36 {36,721y (132400
Ciain on dlﬁpmﬂi of promeriy, F||m1|: | |.'|.|u||1|1||:|:|l an R ] {24 A1K)
Aanorissation of deferred grant 1.1 (ZE50) {15724
Albance Tor expectid credit hases i1 65 RAT
Flilane vios a7 (211 [RIE
Heturmn on deposit aecounts EL (1758.531) (131.575)
Fmterest on Pekistan mvestmient bands A% {80,743 [
Intesest on ndvanoes 38 (418 (2571
Dividend weome 34 {198,116} I1TR365)
Unrenbired osndgnm) on resmemsurermant of shior 1emm mvesimenis 37 4,095 (4,172
215,647 1734932
Operathng profil belore working capiial clnmges 1a40.012 LAnh A0
Cliarmges i
lorventorivs (1.360,695) (3444000
Trade debts (27.182) 15486
MAabvances, renayments  amd other recevables {193,721 ) i HE 23RS
Trude amd ather payihies 27181 eh3 i3
Contract lnbilines: J1LART wiAT0
{1277 4500 | el 746
Cash generated from operafing activitics 12, B62 |l 124
Frnanee das paid i1.6632) (1377
Employes henefies paid 120 & 122 (ALTRY) (26470
Workers' pralil participation fund paid 14.2 {H5.8RH) {BR533)
oo baces peid 9 {HES, TR0} {445 3006)
Mot cash from operating activithes 58,243 | 26HALR
CASH FILAYWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase ol property, pland il eyurpErEl {500,025y (X257 1410)
Procesds feom disposal of property, plait and equipasend 1700 1477 30007
Loag term adyvonces pakd T4l LAGS
Lang term deposiis paid 947 (14161
Rezlization of short o iwvestments 548751 18,512
Rensm on depasits received B LR 72594
Dividends received 198,106 175365
Met cash from investing wctivities 461,204 175,380
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Favinent apains lease lpabibitics g {15,934k 4122580
Rupu}.‘rn_'u.l o Lo b (125,231% LTRSS
Dhivixdend pusd {4006, 76H) (s 1580
Mol ensh used bn lnancing activities {547,929} 1132367
Mt (decrense)/incresse in cash and cash equivalents (2B 4RE) 31440
Cash and eash equivalents at beginning of the year 2509278 3 1497 58
Cash and cash eipulvalonts ot end of the year a 1480.747 2,0 228

The arwesed notes 1t 51 form an mtegral pant of these financial atatements.

M

£y

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

G~

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

THE COMPANY AND I'TS OPERATIONS

Murree Brewery Company Limited ("the Company") was incorporated under the repealed Indian
Companies Act (now the Companies Act, 2007) in February 1861 a5 & public limited Company in
Pakistan. The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The Company 15 principally engaged in the manufacturing of alcoholic beer, Pakistan Made
Foreign Liguor (PMFL), non-alcoholic beer, aerated water (non-aleoholic products), juices and
food products, mineral water, ghass bottles and jars. The Company 1s presently operating three
divisions namely Liquor, Tops and Glass to ¢arty out its principal activities,

The registered office of the Company is situated at National Park Road in Rawalpindi, Pakistan,
The addresses of the Company’s corporate office, manufacturing facilities and warehouses owned
by the Company located in Rawalpidi, Haitar, Lahore and Gujranwala are disclosed in noie
17.1.5, The addresses of the Company's other sales offices/warchouses are as follows:

- Khasra Mo 413, 414, 415, Khatooni No 565, 566, 567, Khewat No 295, 296, 297, Maura
Jaliari Bhai Khan, GT Road, Tehsil Gujar Khan & District Rawalpindi:

- Rati Gali, Avabia Road, Murree:

= Mansoor Abad, near Sant Sing ratlway gate, Jumra Road. Faisalabad;

- 164/B, near Winter Time, Small Industries Estate. Sahiwal;and

- 28-B, Small Industrial Estate, Main Lahore Road, Sargodha.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of)
International Financinl Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards), issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (LASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
Where provisions of and directives issped under the Companies Act, 20017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2007 have been
followed,
Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in note 4,

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except for the
following items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date.

ltem Measurement hasis

Land, building, plant, machinery | Revalvatnon model
and equipment

[nvestment property Fair value model
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Murree f%’mmy (%wy Liniled
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Investments held for trading Fair value through profit or loss

Emplovee benefits Present value of the defined benefit lisbility, determined
through actuarial valuation, less fair value of plan azsets

The methods wsed (o measure fair values are disclosed in the respective policy notes.
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (Rupee or PER), which 15 the
Company™s Tunctional currency, All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise stated,

Use of judgments and estimates

In prepaning these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that
affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
Habilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historieal experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reazonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis, Revisions o
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively,

Judgments, assumptions and estimates made in applying accounting policies that have the effects
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as fidl ows:

- Noted | and 17; Useful lives, residual valves and depreciation method of property, plant
and equipment:

- MNote 421 and 18; Useful lives and depreciation method of right of use asset and lease
term and discount rate used to calculate lease lability;

- MNote 4.2 and 19 Useful lives, residual values and amortization methad of intangible
asset;

- Mote d:3and 21: Fair value of investment property;

= Note 4.4 and 25; Provision for slow moving inventories;

- Note 49, 410 and note 6; Recognition and measuwrement of provisions and
contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
TES0LITTS;

- Note 412 and [2; Measurement of defined benefil obligations: key actuarial
assumplions;

- Note 4122 and |3 Recognition of deferred tax lisbilities and assets and estimation of
income lax provisions:

= Note 4.8.1 and 26: Measurement of allowance for expected credit loss of financial assets
at amortised cost:

- Note 4.8.2: Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories: and

- HNote 4.14 and 31: Revenue recognition

profit attributable to the production and sale of food and beverages.

55
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Fair value measurement

*Fair value® is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transter a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date, The fair
value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument, A market 15 regarded as active if transactions for the
asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information
on an ongoing basis.

If there is no gquoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that
maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction,

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price-i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Company
determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
nor based on a waluation technigque for which any unobservable inputs are judged 1o be
insignificant in relation to the measurement, then the financial instrument is mitially measured at
fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate
basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market datu or the transaction is closed out.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
vitlues. Management has  overall responsibility  for overseeing all  significant  fair  value
measurements, including Level 2 fair values.

Management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then
the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion
that these valuations meet the requirements of the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, including the level in the fair value hicrarchy in which the valuations should be
classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or
liability. either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs),

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in iis entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement,

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has oceurred

3 STANDARDS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2023;

= Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 in January 2020)
apply retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after | Janvary 2024 (as deferred
vide amendments to IAS 1 in October 2022) with earlier application permitted. These
amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as
current. Convertible debt may need to be reclassified as “current’. The standard also amends the
aspect of classitication of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right
at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. An entity's expectation and discretion at the reporting date to refinance
or lo reschedule payments on a long-lerm basis are no longer relevant for the classification of a
liability as current or non-current, An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in
accordance with 1AS 8.

= Non-current Liahilities with Covenants (amendment to 1AS | in October 2022) aims to improve
the information an entity provides when its nght to defer settlement of a liability for at least
twelve months is subject to compliance with conditions, The amendment 15 also intended to
address concerns about classifying such a liability as current or non-current. Only covenants
with which a company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a
liability as current or non-current. Covenants with which the company must comply after the
reporting date (ie. future covenants) do not affect a liability's classification at that date.
However, when non-current liabilities are subject to future covenants, companies will now need
to disclose information to help users understand the risk that those liabilities could become
repayable within 12 months after the reporting date. The amendments apply retrospectively for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with ecarlier application
permitted. These amendments also specify the transition requirements for companies that may
have early-adopted the previously issued but not yet effective 2020 amendments to IAS 1 (as
referred above).

=  Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (amendment to IFRS 16 in September 2022) adds
subsequent measurement requitements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the
requirements to be accounted for as a sale. The amendment confirms that on initial recognition.
the seller-lessee includes variable lease payments when it measures a lease liability arising from
a sale-and-leaseback transaction. Aficr mitial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the general
requirements for subsequent accounting of the lease liability such that it recognizes no gain or
loss relating to the right of use it retains. A scller-lessee may adopt different approaches that
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satisfy the new requirements on subsequent measurement. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2024 with earlier application permitted.
Under 1AS 8, a seller-lessee will need to apply the amendments retrospectively to sale-and-
leaseback transactions entered into or after the date of initial application of IFRS 16 and will
need to identify and re-examine sale-and-leaseback transactions entered into  since
implementation of IFRS |6 in 2019, and potentially restate those that included variable lease
payments. If an entity (a seller-lessee) applies the amendments arising from Lease Liability ina
Sale and Leaseback foran earlier period, the entity shall disclose that fact.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS | and IFRS Practice Statement 2) — the
Board has 1ssued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting
policies and to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key
amendments to LAS 1 include:
— requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies:
— clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed: and
— clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events
or conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements,

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and (two additional
examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginmng on or after 1 Janwary 2023 with earlier
application permitted.

Definttion of Accounting Estimates (Amendments o 1AS B) introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates clarifving that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that
areg subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective
for periods beginning on or after | January 2023, with carlier application permitied, and will
apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies
ocowrring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company
applies the amendments.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to
IAS 12) narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise o equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies
will need to recognize a deferred tax asset and a deferred 1ax liahility for temporary differences
arising on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and
decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be
recognized from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognized as an adjustment to retuined earnings or other components of equity at that
date, The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January
2023 with carlier application permilted.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venlure

{Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28} amend accounting treatment on loss of control of
business or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction
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that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets that are not
businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the
completion of a broader review,

Supplier Finanee Armangements (amendments to TAS 7 and IFRS 7) mtroduce two new
disclosure objectives for a company to provide information about it supplier finance
arrangements that would enable users (investors) o assess the effeets of these arrangements on
the company's linbilities and cash flows, and the company's exposure to liquidity risk, Under the
amendments, companies also need 1o disclose the type and effect of non-cash changes in the
carrying amounts of the financial Habilities that are part of a supplier finance arrangement. The
amendments also add supplier finance arrangements as an example 1o the existing disclosure
requirements in [FRS 7 on fuclors a company might consider when providing specific
quantitative liquidity risk disclosures about its financial labilities. The amendments are effective
for periods beginning on or afier | Junuary 2024, with early application permitted. However,
some relief [rom providing certain information in the year of nitial application is available.

International Tax Reform Pillar Two Model Rules (amendments to [TAS 12 ) introduce
following new disclosure requirements:

Once tax law is enacted but before top-up tax is effective;

disclose information that is known or can be reasonably estimated and that helps users of its
financial statements to understand its exposure to Pillar Two income taxes at the reporting
date. If information is not known or cannot be reasonably estimated at the reporting date, then
a company discloses a statement to that effect and information about its progress m assessing
the Pillar Two exposure,

Adter top-up tax is elfective: disclose current lax expense related 1o top-up tax.

These amendments apply from 31 December 2023, No disclosures are required in interim
periods ending on or before 31 December 2023

The above amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements,
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies as set out below have been applied consistently 1o all penods presented
in these financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment and advances for capital expenditures
Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
horrowing costs. less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses except
for:

- Lands arestated at revalued amounts,

- Buildings are siated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and mpairment
losses, ifany,

- Plani, machinery and equipment s stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any.
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- Capital work in progress and advance for capital expenditure is carried at cost less
impairment loss, if any.

ltems in property, plant and equipment are recognized at revalued amounts based on valuation by
external independent valuer. Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is credited to a
capital reserve in sharcholders™ equity and presented as a separate line item in statement of
financial position.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land, buildings, plant machinery and
equipmentare recognised, met of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated m
revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease
previously recognized in profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or loss.

Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in other
comprehensive income 10 the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset: all other
decreases are charged to profit or loss.

Long term leases of land in which the Company obtains control of the land are accounted for as
property, plant and equipment and presented as ‘leasehold land”,

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use,

The completed / acquired capital work in progress and advance for capital expenditure is
transferred to the respective item of operating fixed assets when it becomes available for intended
use.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
theyare accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

Giain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the canving amount of property, plant and equipment and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreeiation is ealeulated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
cstimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and
isrecognised in profit or loss, Land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Leased assets
are depreciated over the shorter of the leased term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably
certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the ¢nd of the lease term. Rates of
depreciation/estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are mentioned in note
17.1 to these financial statements,

Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the
asset charged to the statement of profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's original cost,
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net of tax, is reclassified [rom revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment io
unappropriated profit.

Depreciation on additions o property, plant and equipment 1s charged on promsta basis from the
date on which the item of property, plant and equipment is acquired or capitalized while no
depreciation is charged from the date on which property, plant and equipment is disposed off!
derecognized,

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed al cach reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate,

Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied o investment property, the property s
remeasured o fair value and reclassitied accordingly. Any gain arising on this remeasurement is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss on the specific
property, with any remaining gain recognised m OCT and prescated in the revaluation reserve,
Any loss is recognised in profit or loss, However, 1o the extent that an amount is included in the
revaluation surplus for that property, the loss is recognised in QOCT and reduces the revaluation
surplus within equity,

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure s capitalized only when it increases the future cconomic benefits
embaodied in the specific asset to which it relates: All other expendinure is recognised in profit or
loss as incurred,

Amortization

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is recognised in
profit or loss, Aanortization rates/estimated vseful lives for current and comparatives are diselosed

in note 12,1 to these financial statements.,

Amaortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed al each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Investment property

Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value with any
change therein recognised in profit or loss.
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Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss,

When investment property that was previously classified as property, plant and equipment is sold,
any related amount included in the revaluation reserve is transfetred to retained sarnings,

Inventories
Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at weighted average cost and net realizable value
except for items in transit which are stated at cost incurred up to the statement of financial
position date less impairment, if any. Cost comprises of cost of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the items to their present location and condition. For items which are slow moving
and/or identified as surplus to the Company's requirements, adequate provision is made for any
excess book value over estimated net realizable value. The Company reviews the carryving amount
of stores, spare parts and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence, if
there is any change in usage pattern or physical form of related stores. spare parts and loose tools.

Stock in trade
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost 13 determined as follows:

- Raw materials are valued at weighted average cost:

- (oods in transit are valued at incurred cost, which includes invoice value and other charges
incurred thercon;

- Cost of finished goods, based on weighted average method, includes direct cost of production
and appropriate portion of production overheads based on normal capacity;

- Work in process including stocks under maturation are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value: and

- Stocks under maturation and work in process are valued at manufacturing cost which
represents direct material, labour and an appropriate share of production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Cost comprises of cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the items to their present
location and condition, Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary
cotrse of business less costs necessarily 1o be incurred in order to make a sale,

Financial instruments

The Company initially recognizes trade debts on the date when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without significant financing component is initinlly measured at the transaction price.
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Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial asset

On imitial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

a)

b}

<)

- amortized cost
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCIY; or
= fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets 15 based on the business model in which a financial asset 1s
managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics,

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model,

Amortized cost

A Tinancial assel is measured al amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL,

it 1= held within a business model whose objective 15 o hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

its contractual terms give tise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

A debt investment s measured at FYOCL it it mcets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within 2 business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contrachua] cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the mvestment’s fair value in OCL This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured-at amortized cost or FVOCT as deseribed above are
measured at FVTPL. Oninitial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCT as at
FWTPL if doing so ehiminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismalch that would
otherwise arise.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost  These assets are subsequently measured ol amortized cosl
using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is

63



Murree Sirewery Company Loniled
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

reduced by impairment losses. Interest income. foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is
recognized in profit or loss,

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair wvalue.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognized in OCL On de-recognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FV'TPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognized in profit or loss.

Equity investment at FVOC] These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment, Other net gains and losses are recognized
in OCT and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities — classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it 15 classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVYTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss, Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

De-recognition

i
il
— substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or

— the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership

Financial assets

The Company derccognizes a financial asset when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or
it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either:

and does not retain control over the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial lability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cashflows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at [air value. On derecognition
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of a financial Liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transfered or labilities assumed) is recognized
in profit or loss,

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial habilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the amounts and intends either to settle them on o net basis or o realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously,

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value of consideration to be received,
Subsequent to initial recognition these are carried at their amortized cost as reduced by
appropriate charge for expected credit losses, 1T any, The Company holds the trade debis with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures the wade debts
subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, Impairment of trade debts and
other receivables is described in note 4.8,

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at the falr value of the consideration to be paid
in future for goods nnd services received. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are carried al
amortized cost,

Impairment
Financial asscts

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost. For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs, Therefore, the Company does not frack changes in credit risk, but instead
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has
eslablished a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debiors and the economic environment.

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs 15 the maximum
contractual petiod over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Al cach reporting date, the Company assesses whether the linancial assets carried al amortized
cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is eredit-impaired when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have ocowred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrving amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset 15 written oft when
the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a
portion thereof,
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Non-financial assets

The carrving amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determing
whether there is any indication of impairment loss, If any such indication exists; recoverable
amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
vitlue less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estmated future cash flows are discounted o
their present value using a pre-tax discouni rate that reflects current markel assessmenis of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In the absence of any nformation about
the fair value of a cash-generating unit, the recoverable amount is deemed 1o be the value in use,
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”),

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds ils estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit
or loss, Impairment losses in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to the carrying
amounts of assets in the cash-generating unit group on pro-rata basis. An impairment loss is
reversed only 1o the extent that the asset carrying amount does not exceed the carrying smount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impaimment loss had
been recognized.

Provisions

A provision 18 recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 15 probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of fime value of money and risk specific
Lo the liability. The unwinding of discount is recognised as finance cost,

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past
events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrénce of non-occurrence, of one or
more uncertain future events not whaolly within the contral of the Company; or the Company has
a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,

Share capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value, Dividend distribution
to the sharcholders s recognized as Hability in the period in which it is declared.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee henefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
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obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the emplovee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably,

Defined contribution plan — provident fund

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future pavments s available. The Company operates o defined contribution provident
fund scheme for permanent emplovees. Contributions to the fund are made monthly by the
Company and employees at the rate of 12% of the basic salary. The fund is managed by its Board
of Trustees.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity and pension plans

The Compuny operates defined benefit plans comprising o funded pension and an unfunded
gratuity scheme covering all eligible employees completing the minimum qualifying period of
service as specified by the scheme,

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans 1s caleulated separately for cach
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that emplovees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fanr value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit ohligations is performed annually by o qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the caleulation results in a potential asset for the
Company, the recognised asset 1s limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions 1o the plan. To
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
mnimum funding requirements,

Remensurements of the net defined benefit labilitv, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the returmn on plan assets (excluding interest) and the efTect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines
the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit Lability/assety for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined henefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in
the net defined benefit liability/{asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments, Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised
in profit or loss,

When the benefits of a plan are chinged or when a plan is curailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, The Company recognises gams and losses on the seftlement of 2 defined benefit
plan when the settlement oceurs, The pension fund is managed by trustees of the fund who are
responsible for the establishment and oversight of the Fund's risk management framework.

Compensated leave absences

The Company recognises provision for compensated absences on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related services are provided. A liability 15 recognised for the amount expected to
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be paid under compensated absences if the Company has a present legal or constructive
abligation to pay this amount as o result of past service provided by the employee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably, The compensated absences are pavable o cmplovees g5 per
the Company's policy. The provision is determined on the basis of last drawn salary and
accurnulated leaves balance at the reporting date. Actuarial valuation has not been carried out as
the impact of present valuation is considered immatenal in the context of overall financial
stilements.

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 1L is recognised in profit or loss except o

the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly 1 equity or in
OCL

Current tax

Provision for current tax is based on taxable income for the year at the applicable tax rates after
taking into account tax credit and tax rebates, ifany and any adjustment to tax pavable in respect
of previous year,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrving amounts of
assets and linbilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

= temporary differences on initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;
= temporary  differences related (o investments i subsidiaries, associates and  joint

arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse o the
foreseeable future; and

= taxable temporary differences arising on the minal recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used, Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans for
the Company and the reversal of wemporary differences, Delferred 1ax assets are reviewed al each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it s no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable
profits improves. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has become probable thal future laxable prolits will be available
againsl which they can be used.

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax raies enacted or substantialby enacted at the reporting date. The
mensurement ol deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would (ollow from the manner
which the Company expects, at the reporting date; to recover or settle the carryving amount of its
assets and labilities,
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For this purpose, the carrying amount of investment property measured at fair value is presumed
to be recovered through sale, and the Company has not rebutted this assumption, Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset if certain criteria are met,

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified mn a contract with a customer. The
Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer,

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of
performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and
the related revenue recognition policies.

Type of product

Liguor-
Aleoholicheverages

Aleoholic beverages

Glass products

| Nature and timing of satisfaction of

performance obligations, including

| significant payment terms

Customers obtain control of aleoholic
beverages when the goods are dispatched
from the Company's warehouse,
Invoices are generated at that paint in
time. Advance payment is received and
there is no financing component. No
discounts or returns are offered for
alcoholic beverages.

Customer obtain contral of non-

alcoholivc beverages when the goods are
delivered to and have been accepled by
the customers at their premises. Invoices
are generated at that point in me.
Advance payment is received and there
15 oo financing component. Discounts
are olfered 1o customers hased on
approved rates.

Customers obtain control of glass
products when the poods are dispatched
from the Company’'s warehouse.
lovoices are generated and revenue is
recognised at that pomnt in time, Advance
payment is received and there is no
financing component. Discounts are
offered to customers based on approved
rales

| Revenue recognition policies |

Revenue is recognized when

the goods are delivered and
have been accepted by
customers at their premises.
Advances received are
included in contract liabilities.

Revenue is recognized when

the goods are delivered and
have been accepted by
customers at their premises,

Revenue is recognised when
the goods are dispatched from
the Company’s warehouse,

Tops - Local sales

Customers obtain control of tops

products when the goods are delivered to
the customer’s premises. Invoices are
generaled at the end of the day when
cash is collected from the salesman.
Sales are made on cash basis, however,
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somme contracts allow credit and there is
no financing component. Discounts are
offlered 1o customers based on approved
rates.

Tops - Sales to
distributors,
institutions and
departments {Tops
transporier)

Customers obtain control of Tops
products when the goods are delivered 1o
the customer’s prenuses. Involces are
generated at that point in time which are
usually payable within 45 davs and
revenue is recognised at that point in
time. Some contracts allow eredit and
there is no significant financing
component. Discounts are offered to
customers based on approved rates.

Fevenue is recognised when
the goods are delivered 1o the
customer’s premises.

Tops-Sales to
distributors,
mstitutions and
departments
(Customer
transporter)

Customers oblain control of tops
products when the goods are loaded 1o
the customer’s vehicle. Invoices are
generated at that point in time which are
usually pavable within 435 days and
revenue 15 recognised at that point in

Revenue is recognised when
the goods are loaded to the
customer’s vehicle.

time, Some contracis allow credit and
there 15 no significant financing
component, Discounts are offered to
customers based on approved rates,

Some contracts permit the customer to return items. Returned goods are exchanged only for new
goods — i.e. no cash refunds are offered. For such contracts, revenue is recognised to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the ameunt of cumulative revenue
recognised will not oceur.

Contract assets

The contract assets primarily relate to the Company's rights to consideration for sale of goods
provided these are not yet billed at the reporting date, The contract assets are transferred to trade
debrs when the rights become unconditional,

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to o customer for which the
Company has received consideration from the customer, If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers goods, a contract lisbility is recognized when the pavment is made.
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performiance
obligations under the contract,

Contract costs

(i} Costs to obtain a contract — Incremental costs of obtaining a contract i.e.. sales commission
paid to third parties are accounted for as contract costs and ave transferred 1o profit or loss
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account based on the systematic pattern of revenue, The Company capitalizes such costs if
revenue relating to such contract has oot been recognized and the Compuany expects o recover
such costs,

(it} Costs to full fill a contract — Costs that relate directly w0 a contract and are
specifically identified, generate or enhance resources of the entity and are expected to be
recovered e, direct transportation and insurance costs are accounted for as contract costs and are
transferred to profit or loss account based on the systematic pattern of revenue. The Company
capitalizes such costs if revenue relating to such contract has not been recognized,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term borrowings under
mark-up arrangements, used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitnients.
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated in PKR (functional and presentation currency) at
the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated into PKR at the rates of exchange approximating those prevalent at the
date of statement of financial position. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translations of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profil or loss,

Operating profit

Clperating profit 15 the result generated from continuing principal revenue producing activities of
the Compuany as well as other income aund expenses related to operating sctivities. Operating
profit excludes finanee income and finance costs and income taxes.

Finance income and finance cost

Finance income includes interest income on funds invested. Markup [ inferest income is
recogmised as it acerues inthe statement of profit or loss, using the effective mterest rate method,

Finance cost comprises interest expense on borrowimgs and bank charges, Finance expenses are
recognised using the effective interest rate method. Borrowing costs incurred for the construction
of any qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or when substantially all the activities necessary 10 propare
the aualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. Borrowing costs that are not directly
attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of a qualilying assel are recognized in
staternent of profit or loss.
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Segment reporting

Operating scgments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. Management monitors the operating results of its business
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable
to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise mainly investment property, investments and other expenses.

Earnings per share

The Company presemts basic and diluted carnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable 1o ordinary sharchaolders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,

L.eases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract, This
assessment involves the exercise of judgement about whether it depends on a specified asset,
whether the Company obtains substantially all the economic benefits from the use of that asset,
and whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date, except for short term leases of 12 months or less and leases of low value
items, which are expensed in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payment that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate (IBR) applicable
in the market for such leases, The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with & similar security, the funds necessury (o obtain an assel
of o similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Company “would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable mputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method and remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset) when there 15
a change in future lease payments in case of renegotiation, changes of an index or rate or in case
of reassessment of options,

At inception, the ROU asset comprises the initial lease liability, initial direct costs and the
obligations to refurbish the asset, less any incentives granted by the lessors. The ROU asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset. The ROU
asset is subject to testing for impairment if there is an indicator for impairment, as for owned

assels
72



Murree Browery Cormpany Liiled
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

3 CHANGE IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

Following new standards, amendments or interpretations became effectve from 01 July 2022, but
they do not have a material effect on the Company's financial statements:

= Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract { Amendments to [AS 37) effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling a
contract’ for the purposes of the onerous contracl assessment comprises the costs that relate
dircetly to the contract, including both the incremental costs and an allocation of other direct
costs to fulfil the contract. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contracts for which
it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative
information is nol required, instead the amendments require an entity o recognize the
cumulative elfect of initially applving the amendments as an adjustment 1o the opening bilance
of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial
application.

®  The following annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or afler | January 2022

- IFRS 9 - The amendment c¢larifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received
between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, ineluding fees paid or received by cither
the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf, when it applies the “10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial lability.

= IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS
16 by excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that night
arise in lease meentives.

= JAS5 4] = The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of [AS 4] for entities
to exclude taxation cash fows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a
present value technique. This amendment cnables the fair value measurement of
biological assets on a post-tax basis,

= Property, Plant and Equpment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to [AS 16)
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januwary 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds
and costs of items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the
location and condition necessary for it 1o be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management e.g. when testing ete,. are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable
standards. The entity measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements
of 1AS 2, The amendment also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds
from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but oaly Lo itenis of
property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of
the carliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component
of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.
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2023 02
SHARE CAPFITAL MNate HLERT] [R5 W)
Anthorized share capital 1.1 FHEARID R
This represents 0,0 (2032 30 000,000 cedinary shares of Bs, 10 coch
Issmedl, smhscribed and piid mp share copital
M3 22 2 20
Mumber by {1, "0k ) eI
FIERIUIY e 0y Ohelinamy shares of Bs. 10 eoch, fully poif im cash 2 S 2.
273959 &) 27 S 1.'h'dlu.:.ry sharek of Ba, 10 ach. tsoed 23 bomis sharee 173,996 273.w0h
17603 (il 27663634 1Th.630 2ThA30

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard 16 the vl."l:-mp\:.ny'x rewidunl assels, Holders ol these shares are entitled o dividends fram iome {6 Lime
e e entetled fo one vase per share ot geporal meetings of the Company

[P Edubp & Company (Private) Limied (incorpesated m Pakistan) and Kingaway Fuand (seorporated 1 CGirand Duechy of Luxembsouig)
(assacinted undertakings") bield 4009 Q50 (2022 4900,959) and G020 88F (222 fIRLERS ) ordinnry shares of Ka 10 each respeotively al
ihe reporting dote. Furher, directors bold 5,61 5668 (2022: 5685, 668) onfinnry shares of Bs 10 cach at the seporting dede

Capital inaiageimenl

Tha Company's objective when monaging capital is to sofeguand the Company's obility fo continue os g poing convem so thal it con contines
provide returns for sharchelders and hepefits for other stekebodders and to mpininin @ stromg enpital base ta suppont the sustained development
af i3 businesses,

The Company munages it capitnd siructeng which comprises copital and reserves by monitering retum oo net assets and makes sdystmenis 1o it
i the light of changes moeconomic conditions.. [n onder lo madain o sdjest the capital sructuns, the Compaty may ndjost the snsint ol
dividend poid to shoreholders and'or issoe new shores. There were no changes to Company's approach to capital mansgement during the yoar
and the Company is nat subjeet o externelly imposed copital requinement,

Mate 223 Pl
CAPITAL RESERVE { s "0 | LRI
Capital meserye 71 30.1'@==I= MR
Thas peserve = nob available for disapbation,
REVENUE RESERVES Nale FLER 2022
(R "0 EER R
Gienwral reserve 327,042 A27042
Comlngeicy e 20, 0iH 20,000
Unapgpropriated profits K1 KA33.682 7437103
éb&%?h TR 145
This represents unappropriated prodis which sre svalable e dsieibution,
023 L
REVALUATION sURPLUS ON PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET OF TAX {Ra.'0iH (B, i)
Balanve @ 01 July i 1T 40728
Surplus ansing e revohetion dunng the year AT 50 4674073
Surplus on disposal of operating fixed assels - (3353
i BIS AT 4,494,760
Transferred 1w equity in respect of incremental depreciation chnrged daring the year:
- Surplus - net of deferned ma Hability [19.05T) 114,503
- Releted deferred tax lnbility 12, 184) LIL0E3)
(31.240) [RE R
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment at Wb June 4 B 185 AAB4, 170
Relpted delerred tax linilify:
O revoluation surplus 21 00 July {3T2HAR) (263,720
On revaluation surplus erising during the year (¥7.570) [RERA T
{In incremendnl dupmxiudum chirged during the vear 2184 (IR ek
(458234} (3720451
Balance st 30 hane 4.3145.951 4001 322
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This represends nevalustion rapkos on revaluntion of lends, buikdimges, plost machinery 2od equipment

LEASE LIABILITIES
2l 201
[EECALIET (LER L]

Lense habilines 15,688 1a.234
Less: purrent partion { ML 1#,208)
Mon-curment portica of fease Labiliues 4,724 7436
Muowvement ol lease liabilines is as follpws;
Ralunee nt dk] July B0, 234 25 =ik
Wi femue lanbilities 11,289 .
Inlanesy A5 1714
Payments daring the year {15,930) (12,201}
Balenee at 30 June 15,048 1h,234
Current psriim of lease Habypliles N, B4 B Ul
Moegursent postion of lease babilibes 4714 14956
Maturily analysis of ondiscodnted leage payments that will be paid after he cepotting date s as fullsw:
Lees thimnh v year Ti480 B2
O b 1wy yeurs 4,50 R A6
Traer b Lheoe 2,208

I'J'ﬂ 15,344

Lense habilities include B B:37 million {20221 Bs. 3. 43 million) against lensed vehicles from finnneial institutions. The lense term for these
srrmaements s 3 years amsl these carmy mopkup mnging from 16 48% 0 23,97% (2022 & 56% to | 4,50%) perannum, &l the |.'nn'|p|n:linr| of the
lease tenm, the Compaiy has the epticon ks acquing the assets upea complete payment of afl instlmens asd adjustment of kesie key meaey, The
faeility 15 secured by way of ownership of the lensed vehecles by the Gonncial institutions.

LA TERM LOAN Nole In2a 202
EERLIT) AL
Balznce at 01 July 124,748 ZR1. 166
Effective interess ar ARY 15,517
Repriyminl L e (1282318 {17E,935)
Halaziwe ai 30 June - 124048
Curmeny portion - 124,748
= 124,745

GOVERMMENT GRANT

Balanue st 41 July 3859 15,205
Annurtizution of defened gmnl 38 {LB59) (13,724)
Balenie at 30 hune - 2.H59
Curnznt portin - 2059

* K59

Im owcler fo mitigate the effect of the COVID 19 pasdenaie; the Sdate Bank of Pakistan ("SBP7) ibroduced "Relimance Scheme for Pavment of
Wages and Salures to the Workers aed Emplovees of Business Concerns® wherely Gnamcing 1 Jow mark-op ties wos made svailable il
catities on ihe cotdition of noi laying off the workersiemiployees and paymient of salaries nnd wapes of permanent, conitactual, deily wapers and
autsonrees] employess from April 2020 @ June 2020, During the venr ended M0 Dime 2020, the Company obanined kmp term loon Geeility
mmambing o Bs 3028 million under this scheme frome Uniled Bank Limited which s secured by first charpe over fixed ossets of the
Compuny éxchuding land and bubding amountmg to Bs 534 million. The loan wos repuyable me8 equal quarterly instalments due fram T April
20210 Imtenest chareeable umdor the refinance scheme 8 0.75% por annum. Accondingly, &0 amount of B 3430 million was nocoptised as
deferred grun iscoms representing the difference befween the loon procesds and presest value of repryments of principal osd Intercss ut
ireremental bommowing mte of the Company e, & moniks' KIBOR + 1% per annom, Peferred grant is being amortized over the tenm of the lran
Tsare were no unful Alled conditions relatad w this gt ot the reporting date. The loons has been repaid in full during the vear,
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12 EMPLOYEE BENEFTTS Nuote 23 122
[Hs. 10} K. i1
Met defisad benefi leasbility - pramin 121 195,963 2R3 HG
Mt definsd benefit ||.a|.'niHI:§- - |.'l1m|5-L'.|'|s|'uI'0d lenve absenee 5,598 13,983
Tatal cniployee berefit lizhiliy 301,54 24065, (50
Met dlefimad benefit ssset - peision 112 55,605 40, TS

1% Mot delined benelin linbility - gratuity

The Company eperates an unfimded granaty scheme o s elighle employecs.
Mevement by nef defimed berefis Hobifity - gratulty

Budance ut 0] Juily 282,606 i, 759
Charge o the year {5 S, 357 24,
I‘l;ru.'ril.-ncc adjustmenis an defined benefit fabilite [ e {I1,7HT) i9,XTH)
Benefis paid (20, ER L]
Biabance ut Wy Junes 1LL] 295,061 42 ARG
= JESL U
1,0, Reconciliation r.lEIi'Jhiﬁl_'l.' recugnised in ihe statement of Onanginl ]ulsillnn
Prusent value of defing] benefit oblipstion 298 Bl 2ad Bk
Mot defined benellt lishiticy 2195 Bn2 51.hEs

1502 Charge to profit or loss

Cluarremt service cest T, 561 19,14 ]

Enzerest cusl 35, 7Hb 25311

11121 S6.367 24,642

ILLLT Expense iv recopnizsd in the following line items in Frnﬁl or losa:

st of sales 1.5 Ll |

Sebling and distribinsen expenses 5,604 4 4
Adminisirative expenses S0l 7,025

6,307 24 642

1LL3 Charge/ (credin) to other comprehensive income

Actuanal Iesses / (gins) from chomges i frenanciol assumphions TiZ TR
Experivnee sdjustments an defined benelit Habiliy 21,4849 10,047)
{12, THT} 9,274}

1214  Key seinarinl iun:rlplitmu

The Tatest pituanial ynluation was cormed o, on 3 Jume 2023, using pragectad unim eredit method wath the oflowmg assumptions:

ALY 2022

| R M1 (LR
Ensconn rote wsed for uverest cost i peofii or |oss 11.25% [T
IHseeanl rabe wsed for reporting daze Habality 16, 25% 132508
Erute o next expected sslary increase 01 July 2623 08 July 2022
Muonzlity mre 13040 SLIC 20008-2005 - SLIC Huaj-2005
Withcrmmal rabss Ape = Based Age = [Apsad
Feticemment sgsumgtion Ape G0 Age bl

12 L1 Assumption reganding future mortality has been based on Swie Life nsurameg Corpormtion (51 20020053, uhimmote maoreality made with |
weur acthack as per recommendntom of Pakiztam Soctety of Actunrics LA,

76



1515

12,151

1L.1.4
12.1.7

1218

1219

120,00

Arnual Repsrt. 2023
Murroe éﬂwaty @r?,my Similed

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Sensitivity pnnlysis

For o change of 10} basic nomis, present vakue of defined benefit linhiliy of reporima dute swould have been us Rillows:

PR ] 033 022 20x2
Inerense Decrense b nsase Dicrésse
(s (M) | Hs, (W) (LR L] [LEREEAT
Discount rate 172,782 dldded 260372 R
Salary Miceexe rabe 11451 ITII9 A0T 6RO 265, 8HT

Although e analyaes does not ke oo account full dsribution of cash News expected under the plan. it dees provide an approsamation of the
semaifivity of the assumptions shown

The Ceanpany’s expeciod charpe for defived benefit babiling - granecy tor the nest year s Rs, 67 66 mitlon.
Wisks associated with defined beselit hability - pratuity
Final Salary Risk (linked to inflation risk)

The nsk thot the Fron] slary ot the iime of cessatwn of serace s grewier thon whob was assumed. Sinee the beoefit 15 colculabed on the Frool
salary (which will chosely reflect milation amd viber macrveconemic Bctors) the benelit amount increases s sulary mensaoes,

Salary Inercase Hish
- Marsility sk

e risk tleal tlse actual morality experience is differcnt than the assmed monality, This elTect is nsore pronoumesd b sebemes whore the age
nnid service destribation i3 on the higher =side,

= Wit RiGK

The risk of oetual withdowwods experience s dalferent from the assumed wathdrovwal probabality, The stgnilicance of the withdrawol nsk varies
with the ape, service and the enitled benefits of the beneficiary

Expected maturity profile

023 1
Following are the expected distriburion and timing of henefit payments st the reporting date | R b | . Do)
Yenr | 11,733 16834
Yenr 2 KRS ] 53,385
Yenr 3 42,048 15,139
Yeard 4,238 46,752
Wi § 13805 41,1
Year &t Yeur 1) A b8 205,288
Wenr 11 ond beyond 4350098 LAR5059
Wz
Present valuw of
delined benefit
linhility
Historical informatiom !Ih.‘uutl]
2023 195,562
L1 281, 6Hb
2l 266,758
Mizn 244,266
2004 47678
023 )22
. . . - —— —
Waighted average durution of delined benefit linbility | years) T 7
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Bt delined benefit assel peasion

The Company apersies & lended pendion sebeme Tor s alipible smployees.

Maovenrant i mef defined heafie asvef pousion Mo
Halamce at i1 July

Charge for the year 1224
Hemeasurement gain secognlzed i other comprehensave Income 1214
Condmbations by the Company

Belanee 4 30 hne 1321

The amaunt recopnized in the statement of financial pasition is as follaws

Present value of defined plon liabahity 12.2.2
Fuar value of defived plan asses 12,23
Pt bl Benielit nass

Thee mwvemenl in the presest value of defined plan liability is as folloas

Present value of delined benelit liability af 01 July
LCxirrent serviee cost

Iderest cost

Remedis pasd dunng tbe veir

Heseasurdinenl galn

Precaenmt volue of meat defived benefit labilite or 4 Jume

The mavemant bn the fale valae of defined plan nssets is as fallows

Fuar value of plan usssts ut 01 Tuly

Comtmbutions raid mio the rlin

Fxpected retum an plan essels

Benefits posd by th plan

Requmn on plan asser excluding mierest income

Fuir valug of plan usssts ur M) June 1LL5

Expense recopnized In profit or loss

Current seTviee cosl
Ingrest incaoime on plan &ssels

Dsterzat cost an defined benefit plan

Plan assets compirise of

Linits in apen end Tunids
Diefersse saving certificates
Cash ok barks

Remeasurement gain recognized in other compeehensive incnme

Actunrial pains from changes in finamein] pssumptions
Experience adjustmends on defined benefil asset
Hemensarernent Eain

78

023 kL)
s i (P WK1
140,205 (M0, L R4
{4.409) (L9712
(R [2,203)
{304 15,751}
(£5.005). (0205
REROT 1 53E
(%1, 276) (30, 736)
| 55,6650 {413, 2415)
40531 HLBT4
Ly 1332
5187 3873
(2.774) (2,254)
(94523 13,144)
A0l M55
HO, 736 T2
RRIET] 5951
1a,71% 7,251
{2.774) [3,138)
{141} (L. E01)
90,276 #1736
1119 1,334
(HLTIEY |7 2HEE)
. ART A4
(4,407 (1,972
28,301 25178
59,130 33,759
1,753 |, 794
00T T HillLY36
{5987y (1265
{34451 SHTE
1441 1101
(HANLD Y (2,2}
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Key actunrial assumprinm Mae LR {1y
Discount mie usel for interess cost in profit or loss 15,380 [ LERNIE
Dizcoimi rafe used foe repociny dobe assed I 25%, [3age;
Bt expactod salary increase 01 August 2023 O] August 2022
Martality rede 1128 SLIC 2000-2008  BLIC M0 ]-2003
Withglrzwnl mies Ape - Based Age - Based
Besiremeni assumplaon A o) Mg Bl

Assumpteon regidmg fotune monahty biss been based on Sete Life surasee Corporatien {SL1C 2000 -2005), ultmate moraliy mee with |
wearf sethnck as per recomumendation of Pakistan Society ol Actuardes (FSOA),

e caleubation of te delned benefin asset 8 sensitive 1o assumptions sot oot gbove. The Tollowing table sumimarizes how the impact on e
defined herefil asscediabifity at the reporting dite woibd have increased’decreased &3 8 result of 8 change |n respective assumpiions iy 100
bosis poinis:

023 W3 021 L | 4]
Increase Decrease Inecnease Dhecresse
{ R, "y | Hs. "M EER TN [He (MK
Dol rufe J059 40,626 37005 44 659
salicy menesie mle 35,508 1458 ALk KL B

Risks wsspciaied with defined benelil asiel - pension
Final Salary Rick (linked to inlation risk)

The risk that the fisal salary ot the time of cessarion of serveee is prester than what we sl Sisce the benefit i calealanal on the final
snlery (which will chosely reflect inRation and waher macroecommmic factens) the benehit amount incrensss as szlary increascs

Salary loerease Risk
- Mardality risk

The risk shat the actual monality experence s differeni than the assamed monality, This effect 15 more pronounced i schemes where the nge
anid kevice destnhabion i3 on the higher fade.

= Wirfrdrmwnl Krsk

The sk of actual withdeawals expenence 15 different Gom the assumed wethdrewsl probataling. The sypficance of the withdsawal nsk vanes
with the mpe, service and Use entitled benefits ol the beneficiy.
Trvestment Fisk

The risk of the imvestment underperforming and being not suffivient o meet the Lahilities,

2023 222
—
Weighled pverage durmbtion of defingd benefit nsset (venrs) E T
2l 2022
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - NET M | R, NN (R CEN]
Dhiterred vax Hability - not 13.1 a15.014 SHTHT
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121 Movement i deferned tax lizbility - net

Heengnized in

et halance ot 01 July Profit or boss Crther Compre- Mot halames af 30
hensive income dane
[, BIH|
FLLRE]
Fasalle temporary differcices
Property, plant 2nd équipment
amil imtangibie nusets ma.zr 42570 = 340, TR2
Righi of Use asset - 7036 . T.A36
Revaluauon surphss on
prapenty, plani and cquipment A (84, 240) 57,5870 A0, 044
Mot defined benelit asset = pengion 15.26H N7 3,024 11, The
GHS, T3 (Iw216) 101k 694 761,271
Deductible temporary differences
Lass allewnmnce For BCL om wagde clebis (3} R - (B
Mot defined benelit Habiloy - grafmty {7,901 (AT K. HHT {117.585)
Provision lor inventares {A7.595) M 150 - [LT745)
Lease linbilities {5357} 170} - 6, 11%)
eI BAT1 B.KHT (126,257)
247977 (22,545 10,581 G504
20r:2
Tuxalle vemposary differences
Property, plant and cquipment
nmal imtzngible assets X6, Tl TLA - 299.311
Ight of Use asst 5265 (5.2465]
Fevnlistion surpelss dn
peroperty, plant snd equipment Ik HE2 (11,528 104,160 37714
Met defiped benefit assen - pemsion B, 735 1,750 757 13,268
Fl0.492 AR (B LA B HEG,TIL
Deductsble remposary difTereinoes )
Loss sllownnce for ECL am trude Jelis (ExIN 1332 - (R3]
Nt defined benefit linbility - graity {41,772) (19,190 062 7.301)
Provisian for mvendories 415 550) [REAL]] . [T
Lizase linbsifinies [ T.A%2Y X12% B 15,357)
LAY (35TIT 1,12 [REIR.ETa
183 ;l.l\-!? Im 47077
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TRADE ANDOTHER PAY ABLES 13 2022
MNuti - US{11113 (s N

Tayuble w ehitrectars and suppliers h32.473 AVE A2
Accrued linbilities 165,655 1ak.500
Bevurity depogits 14.1 53,037 63,311
Tayabliz o Workers' Profit Parhcipaion Fund | WTPF) 14.2 132,890 127,02
Faynble 10 Workess' Welline Fund o WWF) 143 124,667 7452
Prowiaran far gas tandl differential 16.2 - LR
Prrowvispon [of wiiter l..1ll.-'|.'|.'1u||.'.c~ 144 & 163 177,104 U2 Sy
Withholding tax pavable i 21,732
Halus thx paynble - net Ton.h26 113,330
Filn tnx payable rEI1H Bl R
Umcansed income 1,047 1 a0
Othees 14.5 149,774 141,138

1,787,543 1370011
security depasiis
Security deposis 14.1,1 F;L'ﬂ? H111

These represent uminlwable ameynts. received as sexunity deposie from dealers and mlnplicrs. of the Ii'nmpangl. Chat at this. an amount of Bs
43144 ollsom {2022 R 2001 7 il is kept oo separite bank socount.

Puvable to Wiorkers" Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

Balarie ui 44 July 12702 110,35
Churge for the vear i5 0,676 53,0k
PFavments (o the Fund dunmg the year [R5 BHR) (hE,553)
Halanee st 30 June 132,540 IEF.W__'-'_I
Fayahle to Workers” Welfare Fond (WWF)

Balonee = 4] July 0,452 35,582
Chasge for the yenr s d5,215 LEN
Balanee st 30 Jume 124,667 7452

Dhering the year, the Company har recognised provision amoonting to R 85:50 milbinn £2022: Rs 4879 millienl in respect of water charges
and macde payment of Bs, 100 malleon (2022: Bx, 2,50 mallon ) o relevant authonitie Foe water consumed

Thesse dnchudes Be. 1 MLR2 million {2022 ¢ 11082 million) vn sccount of expart duty payable on Pakistan Made Foseign Ligour and Bier

CONTRACT LIABILITIES b ok | 2022
{ s, b { Bs. T
Contract labilitkes 15.1 2771 205 GRS

Tsediz fepewsent unuseed sdvances fomm custonmers agninsEl sale of poeds,

CONTINGENCLIES AND COMMITMENTS 023 2o

o Fs, b { R TIHE)
Continpenches:
Latter of pearmisboe 1ssued by banks on bebullof the Conipany 16.1.1 128440 Lo42

These represent hank poarantes issucd o the normal coorse of hosines 19 Sl Northem iy Pipelimes Limmied [t o L amenaning in
13870 mulbon (2002 Ra 10002 millsin for commensol and imdustonl vse of gas snd beok gusmnied sased oo 00 il Gays Bevelopent

Comgpuny Limiied {"OGDCL") amasanting fo B 2.7 million (2022 Ra 2.7 million) agains supply of Mirree Sparkletrs waser fo OORCL
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Ve Uy P beem paying s s adosirial bills based gn gas api] af Bs, A48 per MMBTL and Ke 575 per MMECU low capmive power messn, as campime] 1@ the
Tl sl by SNGPL o s, 60K per BB T e boethe Etigstions aludg with e iy 1n e epect, SNGPL masod demand omounimg i B 1527 mélllon, being
amginal gas tardT differemtinl mmomiing da Bs. 1059 milkion, related siles inx amounting o B 18 mmllion aml laie paymesd sercharpe ssounting bo B 13008 millon.
The Ucmpany has recopnized provises amounting o Bs. 1238 milion, beine the angiml gas il ddfsveminl aed relsad sales ox snl contested e demand by
SNGPL an i Pesthawar High Conn, The comt vide ie onder duted 25 Febvunry 30022 refered the maier sl & G Regnlatny Austharisy (0GR A ) G finel deizgn
OCERA g OIT har ciar o 18 Mowamber TO22 mewd direvied tha pestitiossees Wopay e privcipal somond ol weilT dfTerenil Gir costiniation of s sapply on regoilar
bayix il the finsl diposal of the appoals related o Late Paymom Sorclarge on ted® diferenizal by the Sopeme Coum of Pakismn. The Cempany has paid pringips
amount i fall s per decision of OGHA, while Latg Poyment Sarcherge & ot pald s relaed sppests m Sapreme Count ol Pakistan are pending. sdyudication
Wlena sl betigves Hal Gevornbbe outcome in e maier is copectad hengfong po (oo sson for Lase Puymen Surclngy on o1 Jicferentinl has boeen made in s
Tl stibdmaiils

Thet Comyany, aking with several other hottlingbevernpe companles, s cumenty avalved in liigsiion ensng fnim s odpmess daied 86 December 204 on oo miie
weii e ohe Suprems C ot of Pakistn (s Moo 20 of 2008 ) reganding che vse of prounidserface water, The Compasy o subject g potenial witer chioge of B2, 1 -
puet liger om e drachim ol pronm] o surfsds water. The Camprny. slong With the beverage imlissry, is cinliating Qe i maole oo jdidgernsnl of D Sogeemo Coon
anid bas filed 2 meview petition. Subsequently, the Supreme Count of Pakisian bas isswed an injerem order for the payment of 25% of tha bills, bosed on production dois of
epch conpany. ssued by venos Covernment agencies in this sepsnd eill te inssafavion of water fion meters by the respective Govenomens agences anil alen framing of
kepistanon T 8 the focern] e poiviscial mihoriiics.

The Punmaly Wanir Act, 2009, wad promdgasad wih effect from 13 Deoember 2009, The Compeny » TGO ENIRNE frovikon al the e ooff B, 025 per lir of warer
comaaril ol ite munudsciring solties Inoated in the Preoance of Punjab n e with the inkerim order of the Sapeeme Court of Makistan.

In Aprd 1089, the Compery recetved notices from the Covemement of Khsbar Sakhissddom concerning waler charpes based on the sun miro nuiace paiement
dlipinding paviretnl pursissa by the Supreise our of Pobbing s onler. The l_"qu:-m_\- gl & il it o ibs Peshismnr High Ciss ngemst the reedvery demssd
ratices. The Khyher Makhiunkbws Clovernimen ensited the Wiiter Act, 2030, with cfiest From 24 Jehe 2000, which includis a ckuse salidating the erdens ssocl wd
actions isken by the Governmene and its relmied ngencies repamdme water charges heflore 24 July 2020, The Khvber Pakhtassian Woter Act, 2021k, comes imo (oroe m
ares and om dates specified by the Imgation Deparment whth e appraval of the Chicl Miniser, The Covmany belloves thar the validagion of e onfers s actices of
e Choemmmirit of Klivber Paklibieibven and iebital ageneiion befise tie protepadg e o he aforesdd Act by g suppoead by iy legdslatos sl e Commpuany has Dlad
a prtiliom tefure the Poshawar High Comt. which is pending adjudication. The Company is recegnizing provision at the mie of Ra, (.25 per liter of warler consnmed iy
manudecnnng fweilies loated in the Provinee of Klyber Paidembctioa in lioe wiih the interim onder of the Sepreme Coon of Pakistan.

In rsgeenct ot s e 200 T w220, the Aduitemal Commessimer, Punjab Byvonue Aathority " PRA® ) his mised & demimil imuuntmg b Be 386,63 masllion againss
alfeped nomewithholdieg of ta om services procured by the Compeny. The Compeny has fled spoenl o the Commisssoner. PELA | Appeak, Lobore, which iv pemdimg
dhispamsal 1l Ty ilmie. The Company s confidest of & fvoemble votcome and sccordmgly ne provision has Been nade in iliese e mancal doemeas for the demssd
el

In Bume 2020, ihie mxethon oifcer saead & demand notice semaniing g B 787 mellion wmder sevtion 25 ond THH of the Sabes Tan Ach, 1006 o thie perisd lam July
012 1e June 2013 oy vw pccount of unreoonodnl mgwat s ol Illn'fmw"r il tar it s ool sippliers, non-wilkkakling of sales Iy om advyriisamomt srvice
il salex inx paymhle i by prodect. The Compemy hes fifed sppeal befione the Commissioner Appenl -1 [shembad mnd he obtamed sty againg recovery mmmyes
Mennpeement expecs favourabde puivomse o the nstier and therefore, so proviion lies been msde i these the fnancinl smienenés for the denmnd raiol.

Vs pevursd wp 0 el iclialmg Tax Yo 222 Beive badn Blad " he i b ies omemded: ehe iasesaieis from i bosime sl e dsscaimai vidias wer aopiedisd
Ty Bl ooy’ Bt the: gt Bt fimam

For Tax Years M3, 2604, 3015, 2008 and M0 ke Corrpany el appeals wiili the Crmsvossloner Bnlend Revenue (Appzale) [CHRUAY] against the menided -
sty omdurs framed by the ax autonties wiseh meluded sidditeons o meome, disallowance of sxpenses med b oedits sgeregatme R 9,70 million. Dhmng the
ven, e ClE A0 disposed ofl thee omppenls by debeting dinlliwances opgrogatiog Bs, 9,192 millico, however, the CIREA Y upheld the disallwassces sggregating Ks. S0s
i gt bl o Comnasy baan filed sppseabs before the Appellot Tobumal Inlesd Revenue which iz pending

The Additiomal Commissaoner: Inkmit Bevenog famod & demand onder amossting 1o Bs 3454 maftion under secoon 1617205 an secoom of afieged nolshort
witkiolding ol ioxes by the Coevgany foms paymems made imder varios hedils of aoooos for oee Tax Year 2017 The Comgamy bas Hled spgeenl Befone. the
Cannmiresboner Toloosl Rovesass [ Appenls i wloch s peiiding degeail Hl-i-lete

For Tax Year D018, the Commemioner Inlored Bevémue  appeals) hae disposed ofT e apgeal fifed by the Company sgalipn the order framaed by thes ion auikonay e
roconar % allepodly not'shan wiihheld by die Compaity rom pagisoenis made weeber warions Besd of socouil sl dolews] 68 demam®: amounting i Be. 1514 inillson
ot of inial fax demmmil of Re 1762 million a5 maiseid by the Azsessing Offcor amd the emaining mives invebong o demand of B, 248 millon havy been nemanided
back 1o the A ing Cifficer fir anent whivh i pending.

Tt Cogmany b confldent thar if fas e smong grounds in the abovee matiers sl expecrs fivoamble omeome, Acedindingly, no provision hes best nade bn resgect of
abive in the francial sisloments

2813 2ir2
Commitiments; Mt (R, ') (R HHN
_
thrsinnding letier of crabies inclading capiml vxpenafiure (1% L0591 L 14n,15%
Cgieal expenabure Somnaes
s FLET 113,735
- (i MR k32,424

1. 1R85 ] 1180, 1 5%
 ——
Far detashs of securmy agnins Letierof Credms; refer to note M0 el idL dehand ()

pURE] 2
PTROFERTY, PLANT ANDEQUIPMENT Moty ¥ B, 1 [CER ]
Opwrating liul nsivhs 171 T4, T1R G.5E1, 182
Crpand work in progress {CWITF) 173 I9uk0 R2.143
774,344 i 324
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Murree Browery Company Limiled
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

1T Lansd invclisdes 2 kanals ioal 3 marlns o possession aof Military Eanbe ke | MEO), Army Hinsng Coloay for constrisctson of & higsinig colony. This
has-been statied al W02 nevabued ameunt in these financial stabomeats which smonnis 4o Bs: 2252 millson, The Compaoy haid filed 3 cese agains MEQD
o hvis enmnbanzed accupation, The count of Chdl Judee, Rewnlpindi hae decreed spamsi MEC for vsesting the land,  Hesveever, the exccution of the
eourt sleeres g prosyss sl the reponing date
17.0.2 Swrplus on vevolantivn of preperiy, ploni and equipment
Thie: lateat pevaluition of the Company®s land, buildings, plant and machinery was made on 30 June 2023 by an |ndependent valuer resilting in nes
wirplus sl Ba: 27126 mdllion § 20322 Bk, 46247 millsin)
Hud there been ne nevalusteuns, relabad Giguwnes ol the revibied assels wookd hove been s lollaws;
Cul Acoumulated Clarrying mooung
dleprecintion
{5, 10} Be 000 (M5 0N
Lawl 120,138 = 12134
Buwildings Sl 431 [2I3.51H) 9L915
PlanL, mschmery snid equipinen 4031 KLT [2.255.545) 1,776,272
mra 4,658 146 2AG00ET) PRELERES
Hixl 4,003, | X LLATHEL) L2301 76
a3 k2
1715 Ihepreciathon charge has leen allecated as follows; Moty (K. '000) R DO}
Cost of <ales 32 B By Asp 480
Selling amd ditribution expenin 33 .| s | 1,92
Administmiive cxpenses 34 .an 11,1598
30, TH w447
17.E4  Based o (e revaluotion carried par a1 M Juse 2023, the Torced sades valve of the land, ballding, plam, machinery ad equepment s R, 3102771
inliea (2022 Ba 2092470 pulfion). B 84032 melbes (20020 Ry 403067 mullion) and -Me. 204762 midlea (20220 Rs 103845 mulbon|
respectiveldy,
17.0.5  Porticulsrs of inmmovabli ficed sisets (e fand oand boidding) mothe ninme of the Company ane & {ollows:
Location 'sage of Tzl Aren of longd Tatal Cavered
Tmmavahle {Aeres) Aren (5. Ftj
proerty
ul Murree Brewery Estze. § Natsonal Park Road, Rowedpindi Carparnte office 2945 IBL2IS
and i Dsclerisg
facilily
b} Befree Glass Factory, 24, Phase 3, Industnal Extate, Haitar, Disirsct Hampor, KPE - Manolcturing 300 54531
Faszilily
£l Plot 312, Industrinl Estate, Hator, District Horipor, KPE Worehouse 200 154
L] Flot 13/4, Industrial Estate, Huttar, Dhstnet Hampur, KPR Warchomse 1 AHY LA
& Plot 12173, Townshep Indastral Ases, Labaiy Mmnilaeturing [ 4718
fsclity, warhaiese
and office
] Mamuafacturing b A5G
Tons Enclony, Mot 1400, Mhase-dil, indisivinl Estate Hiidor, District Hoor, KPE faility
Bl Khaera mee | T8, Khewat no. 57, Kleasoni o, 94, Moo Lobivanwabs, Tehsil sand - Warchowse .26 LR
Drsariet Ciupranwialn
ik Mot T2, Plase-[1 Industnal Extate Hadbae, Dostnet Hanpor, KPE Blenulituniig 2 LE.AS4
Facility
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Murree ﬂwefy ﬁw’y Liniled
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Dretabl af ilsgosads of sperating fived asseds

The detials of opecalimg fined assers sold duriee e vear, hiviong o del book vailue m esces of Ra 500,000 gach. are as follows:

Costrevalied  Careving  Sabe

Relotion with

1] il d ' ¢ &1 I
escriptinn i il R LEt Farghnsers LS n_mpun:- wilg of Disposal
Diregtar
(R, 'Sl
e
Yehichs
Suruki Culms LI27 ] GO0 hr. Banssh Kumaor Employee Asper ";m]m""”
pidicy
Suaiki Cultus 22 s 27 I M. Mascer Bai Emplayes "";L':"]m""ﬁ
o
03 1144 H45 1576 Y3 Also reler pote 3e
22 30,704 5389 JODT  JAIR  Alsonefer mote 36
r{ kX1 Hix2
Capbtal work In progress (CWIF) Mato { Hs. ) (LN
Balsnce at 0 July KX 142 -
Aaldibicsis ELN - 1] B 142
115,022 B2, 142
Trmmnerred fa dgwevating e avsor
Fland, eoae binery amd exquipmensd [ | (B3392) -
Babance ol 30 June (representing civil works amd machinery ol commssioned § 29, 63K K2.142
RIGHT O3F USE ASSETS Nate 223 M
COST | Fe. i 1R TRy
Batanue ot 41 July a4 53,193
Additipays 2177 5
T'isnsfer tos propery. pladil sod equipaeis 7.1 {7,280 1 1.ET)
Dispesals - L1 ;K]
Balance ot 30 June =l 315 50428
DEFRECIATION
Habsnce at il July 41,736 .57
Charpe for the yesr 8.1 AT TA44
Ot transfer 10 propery. phant end equipenes) 171 {3570 (1.765)
Biikance ab 30 Jume 46,027 41.7346
Carrvimy amsiend 18,298 17652
Hate of deprecition gt ammm (5hp 10%a e 200, 1 0% by 21%%
ul.'rlﬂtiulihh ehn s las Been allscated as foflows;
Contof sales 22 - 9
Selleng and deathibalim o pensas 1n 5,441 iAol
‘dlminisimiive sxpenses EE] LaTE 1624
LA TAa44

Az of ihe renoniing cale; right of use ussels consist of kased premises and vehicles
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Murree %wegt- (quy Liniled
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

INTANGIBLE ASSET Mule 1813 T2
| R D) | T
Camputer sofiware 19,1 = 263

Hevangblistlan of carrying nmanmnts

st
Helpnee np 4 July 2,595 7405
Balance af 500 June 1,505 2405
Avcummbated amortization
Balance at 1 Tuly 331 IR
Amnrtznisom 3 i 5ia
Badance of 30 Jgne 5495 %12
Carrying valoe - plx]
Ttaie of meportization per anmam Ly MG
Amartization charge for the year has been alioened to admimisimative expenses.,

1013 iz
ADVARNCES FOR CAPITAL EXPENIITIRES s (I | F )
fabvemees for elvil works 113,447 44,508

1ENHT IR
IMVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Heconckliaden of carrylng snoan Nate 2023 2022
| s T 1 B TR
—

Balance ar 07 July SIL,127 9T Rl
Changze in fnir valise I 54,731 113,241
Halance at 30 lang i .'ilﬂgﬁﬂ 31,027

The investnwent property represenas lands and buildimgs hedd for copsal apprecintson snd to eam rental ingomes. O 30 Jupe 2023, anoxercise was carmed
i by |r|d...'|:.¢mk-n| wilier 8 asceninin the e vilue of myesiment TPy The price af land ol the investmeng propeny 9 sneessed b o mprkel
resenrch cartied sl i ihe anen whire the propeny b sinled. The thir value of the property Ix based an mdependint valuers judgment shial pvirage
poices prevalent oo the said deie ond hos been prepored i openly avoilabde/provided mfocmntaon ofter maiing relevamt inguaries from the market
Chnges in fivir ynlie ore revognized ax goins in predit or loss amd inchesled insher imeome’, Al gaiee ore umrenlimsd.

Farticulars ol investmeat propeeiy of the Congpamy and (he foreced sale vabies aro as folliws:

Ares Foreed Sale value
Locutiom 5. Fin (R Hil
Plet 12173, Township Industrinl Anca, Lahane 2115 247305
Uil Suive S04, Sth Floot, alabsbnd stck enchatge Tower, Blue Ane, slamabad EEH] 17744
Oifice 4| 1, Fourth Floor, The Formm. Block 9, Cliftan, Komchi 1,035 MRI%
MEP Building, Migrmres Brewery Extnle, Nutional Pak Ronil, slamobas] |, 4RT 5A%
Houase pn 200, Street no. 37, Seetar B-70, Blanabml 5994 143933

Muasarement of Talr vilies
“ulr vakue hierorchy

The far value of myestment praperty wik defermaned by external indepenident viluer, having appropriste recognised professional gualifications anil
reven] experence in the lecation and cstegory of the prspeny being voloed. The fair valog mensarement of the imvestment peaperty has bevn cntegonsel
w5 Level 2

Simce the ynlues bave been determined by extemnl udependent viluer and inpuis ane unobservuble, sensitivity nnalysis has oo been presentad,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

b PR3 21
P0G TERM ADVANCES - SECURED Male | s, 'y [Rs Ty
Mulvance by emplayees 330 15 An7
Lessias D widhin one yeer, shavwn under oument meseis T i 2155 (A
11,758 13,484

These advanees carry imersst ol 1% Q00220 10%) per annam ad are repayable in perinds op e three yvenrs. These sdvances have been given in
aceordance with the Company's policy for e parchose of vehich. These advances are secunasd aaingt the ownership of vehicie

LONG TERM INVESTNENTS Mate
Amurtived ot 23 20232

1 He I [ T
Pakiston Dnvestment Bonds {PIBA) Fk N | S1M,452 1144

Thei represeots myestment ih Pakislan Ievestivenl Bonds (PIBS) baving Evoe wibug of Beo S0 millsis (20228 B, S0 mmilhion). These PIBS cormy &
company rade of 8 T5% (2022; § 73% per anmum with profit poyuble on o half yeardy husis, The matunity date of PIBs 3 2] Ao 2246

LANG TERM DEFOSITS Mty 13 2032
(Bs.'000) (R T}
Loz term dheprisanis 4.1 44,420 ELRLE

Thess represeni deposds merintmisod with the uisliy companies. These ane unserened, mpenest fee ood refimdable on leoninaton of services.

INVENTORIES Mute 013 2l
| Ry (R H]
oy, spnene persy annd fanse faoly
Sunres TRE 4R 21343
Spare nirts and bcss toik ivh, 355 M H4S
JdE Rl 284271
Srock m trovdp
FEaw meterind %R |, B IR
Gl i trnisif X141 -
Wark n provess. 340,684 IaE313
Keock under maturatian - WIF 151 X7, 040 2R
Fimished poods S AR PRLIRITL
J567, T3 2,768 914
Lese prowision for shaw moviny inventuriess 252 [IRL AT (114.E34)
07237 2ANERE]

A substastisl parsicn of mall whisky will nis be sold within oee yeor becanse of the dursdian oF the aging process, Al mob whiskyis clessified os pock
utder mutarston s 4 enebbed mocurrent nesets, afbaigh pamon of sach evemmees may be aged for persals greser thim s year wiilch & e usunl
time poriod. Waretinsing insumnce: md other carmying cherpes applivable s mall whizsky held for aging s mejoded m myvenlany cosl

Movimment in provisien for slowing moving investories

Batkznee a1 July 114,534 A3B07
Provisbon for ke moving lnventonies 34 44T 40029
Balance ot 30 June {Hu'%!ﬂ ] I-IIHJ-'I
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Murree Srrawery Company Liniled
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023

FLFR] 2022
TRADE DERTS - nsecurel e 55.'0"‘; ¢ R THI0
Urintishiemi] pinnd 42136 L5100
Considered deonbiful 2A7TY 208
309 17,027
Liss boss albovasos for expected credit bosses Ind [2073) (2IMIH)
42 ¥k L5104
Lawss nllowunce For expected credit losses
Balance o (H July 3 0= §,141
Albawangs for gapested crgglin boss &5 BAT
Batance al 30 Jung T T
—— —
The sge amallysis of traide debis, al the reporting dite, ¥ a3 follows:
Traai due
up b » montha 42114 15,522
-un B 1 ko B maonehis 1.0l 1,503
=ty B piniidlis 449 -
44 M9 | 7,027
ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS ANDOTHER RECEIVABLES Nt 2013 2022
1 s, D B CHIO
Adlvances tiy r.-cnpln_l.\-w; - i) 2,133 H3
Curvent poribon of lomg term advimees - secinad i1 953 5,027
Aulvances te supphiers - wmecurd ETA T ] 279,670
Mrepaymenis [[i% T 21,503
lestiereed goeried RATY 5413
b meoovables T50 HEb
0.5 16, d%4
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS Nule 2z 2022
(s, 000 (Res Y10
Tevewtmenmdy enf fore vadue Shrang profit or foo
Shares of lsted companess 20 iR
Ml fands IR 1410501 1 97H413
Ifﬂi'-éliI | Th44 |

I'hese represent tndds invested i D075 mdllion CHIE2: | 0K43 mbllicen wnits of vorous ] fumis having mocket valig smeing o Ra 807 e Ks

103,75 (2022 We: Y65 ta Be SO7.51) por umit

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX - NET Note s 2z
(Hes, "0y {1000y
=
{rpening halmee {125.827) FRRRRL
Pruv e son Lor Ay - currend] Ll [RTRS21) (RTEATI)
Incomie tax paid during the year HES THO 403 300k
Closing balanee {113.268) (125027
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022
M AN LRI
CASH AND BANK BALANUES
Clash o hand ETR KRN
Banking mstrument i land 01 . PO 00
Cash gt banks:
- loenl currency curment aceounts G51.502 oS AE2
- local corrency deposit accounts kN 1 AHL 198 L], T4
- Foeeigh cusfency deposdt account Rl B - 208D
2A3%.Th 2 kPR
ina 2480.747 2 500 124

These carmy inbgrest rnging from 12 409% po 1806y | HI22: & R5% (o |3 AKM T ATy
This carries interest a1 the rote of . 23% (2022 %) per anmum.

Thix tncludes eash margin amounting 1o Rs. 100 amillien (2022: Bs 100 malleomd with Askan Bank 28 security agoinst letter of guarintee
faeilities

Financing facilitles
At the reportung dote, the Company hod following funded and unfunded finnnee focifitees nvailable from scheduled banks

Cash finsoee fscilioy srmounting o Ra 335 million (2022 Rs 35 millaea ) from Bank Alfalah Limited, Rawalgpiodt This fisciline is avablable ll
31 Ovtober 2023, This carrees mark ap af the rate of & months' KIBOR plus 1% (2022: § months' KIBOR plus 195) per anmum, Principal i<
paahle an expiry of on demamd whichever {5 earbier. it 15 secured apainst present ami futune current pssets of the Company registered with
Sevurities and Exehonpe Commaission of Pakiston amounting te Bs 75 million (2022; Rs, 75 millian )

Rl:nmng limance Facihity amEHing g R LMY milleon (2022 Rs, Milj From axbenrt Bank Lamited, Telamabmd. This fosilety 1= wvmidahle Ll
31 Dhgtober 2023, This carmies mark wp af the rmie of 1 months’ KIBOR plus 0,.4% (2023 Nil) per annum., Principal is poyable on expiry or on
demiand witichever is carlier. T is secured agamst present and fulure current assets of the Company remisteréd with Securities and Exchange
Commisslon of Pakistan omoanting o B 1334 million (2022 Mil)

Facabitied uf lefiers ul puarantes and letiers af credit nun g Lo W 00 amalfio (022 Ra 10 million) amd Hs. 6878 mulbion (3023 [ 450
millice) from Bank Alfoloh Cimdied mespectively weee avallable: Facilities of letters of puarnntee and lesters of credit are secured agins
present and fulure assets of the Company and lien on mperi documents respectively

IFacibives of letters clrglm‘l'unl,uu. x|'||!1p||u|, pusrnice and legters ol cradil FRRTRTEERTITE e 100 mulfion { 2022 R 100 smalbaon), R S8 mllo
{222 B, 30 mlleon p nned R 250 million (2022 Bs, 200 millwen ) from Asknn Bank Limited respoctively sre availabie ty the Comgnny il
3] Dolwbes 2013, Facilities of letters of gunraniee ond - shipping guarentes are secured against 100% cush moirgin ond L on impot
dacumsnis,

Facility of letter of eredit omounting 4o Bs. 300 million (20220 Bs 300 million) is available from Allied Hank Limiied Thes fogility is
availuble 1ill 31 Decoinber 2023 This facility is secured amainst Hen over valid impon docunents.

Facihity of letler of eredit amounting to Bs, 500 mllon (2022 Bs, 200 mullion) and letier of gusranies of Bs §30 milhon (2022; Rs, |50
millien ) was pvnikable from United Bonk Limived ond are available to the Company 6l 30 Jone 2023, This facilicy i5 seennsd ngoinst Lien over
valud import documents amd 1005, cazh mangin of lea on depositTFBL Fads B owill Be accepted in low risk money modkes fincs),
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

2033 il

MET TURS{YER Mite | Hes.' Ty 1 Rs, W
lumiveer 1L 50T 313 Pl [0 .5 B
Sdes tay 14,162, T4%) {3,200 81
Feleral and prosenesal exeise duty [ RTER AT [AE 1)
Tk didsigranis {1, HI5TE) R0 )
Sxes refurs - [12254)
Kivenwe from comimavts with custemers LIN | Iﬂ.ﬂlilﬂ | 5234318
Dissggregniion of kegpl and islernitivanl sales
Lol wabes [EEERNT |52 4171
Expoat saics SH1HE 34,347

k| ) Iaﬂll.lﬂ 15.23:k3 18

Disaggregation of revesue frsn coniracts with cusemers

T ibee filfowwing inhle, revenne fom coniroots wilh cusiomeses i@ bagerepeed by primsary geagrephbenl markel, mgor producis anil savice lines anil dmmg of revens

rocpmaiin

Primwry gengrapivioe! mrkon

Funjab T.RGT, R L L
Simidh (AL ] 347,757
Khyher Pakhumighiovae 1 %ug 25k |k Tdq
Fralochisian 1,515,611 L2341 400
Islamnbad Capal Termory H52,137 514,586
(hery 187, il Ll
ILWIIIHH- 14214 V1K
Magjur peaaiepeherls e
Fakiamn Mude Foron Elguor (PAFL) bddl 253 4 816,306
Beur A41,303
Mol aleoholic bevernpes ard nrodiiot SAGH, 1
Teira Puk juwes 1,162,925 1555 751
Jurices Mt Ketumshle 370,069 0G|
Sparkieiti bottled drmking waier 1A G 253
Cilias ity 414,55 Watan
Dbty = Izugy
18,591, 153 153108 1B
Tlanfag off revewne recegiritdug
Proloi imsfernod ab a posn ot 18591, 183 15214315

Remvenus monounting e Ha 2706011 pmillieo 20220 B 202600 el welodied 1w the spummy cenrset bablity bdunes Bop been scopnized during the sver

ik} b (kb
CORST OF SALES Mo o5, HHI) LR
Raw makerials conssmed kA | LTG50 HITH A
Siires and dpares consumed IHE. T EETIN]
Fovd and puosin L7441 WEL AW
Selarivs, wages and other beoefile i e | HOW JI&T TOT 0549
Repairs and maintensce I8, T [ERRCE Y
Depresmlion 1713 g 1A 450
Deprevintion-Fiphi of D At (EN] - T
Cgnt bo fulfila contmet - tmnapocioion ATHTEL A4, 20
Otk manudrcruring opmes 1"3::.,‘\}_:... 149,735
15,6R4,561 11783, 164
Work in process imcluding sinck umdstr narimraiion
Opening ok o 01 Juh 363,024 pC U EE]
Choding sock ot M Joes | 15T AL 16,1 24y
[ LR |k, 26
Ut of goods imainFacts rnd 15, 60K, Heh | [, AEE i
Fimistied goods
DOipstiirig stock o 1] Dby U T 21RAIRS
Chming; ginck st ) Jime | 150 Wy €110 Unl)
LARI.9Thp 3, 11K
150K, 1ck IR
Team mnterials comsmmed
Opening wiock s 1] July 1604, 41% 1243087
Purclases 11,775,762 4 I1a 547
Chirsling snck s M Jusse {1303, 1) I T s K250
LLATh 5% R.TTR Al

This inchudies stafl eeirement bénefn moossting o Ka 4190 million (2032 Ra 3527 million)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

1021 2002

A3 SELLING AND CHSTRIBUTION EXFENSER Mute (R | Fs WKy
Snluries, wazes and other henelits LN 184,757 | 85,612
Aabvgemiegivseinl md pullicity Riw7 B TER
selling capgrscs [ELEETH a8 340
Iniremental cost of shexining o conirac) - sals commission Bl 3% [ i ]
Humples 17532 11,has
sinles proamotion 1H,1%A 15,524
Freaght T 21K | B4, 244
epeeciatons property, plam and cyEipment 1713 28x7 (AL
Drepareciabsan- dghel of e ssse 1] SRy 4,601
Servics charges sod commesesan oo DU Edulil & Co, (Privide) Linsined, o refarad pary Li a7 207 Ik
(eliers 165,40 1&7371

L5365 | 16531

A3 This includes stz reiorement benefits meounnng do B 500 million (20022 4,44 million)

Pk} i)

3 ADMINISTRATIVE EXIPENSES Mg FLLENL U] (LR L]
Salnries, wages and other henelils 40 AR2 J4% gem
Trvelling ard conveymnee T.5%{ L0AT4
Prinding aml siatioenss 1H.111 11R4T
Hapaley and mamivnange R3aM 7an
Tuel nnd pavwer 54,505 24137
Ihrecions fees anil travelling HEM 6 H41
Capmmumicsi=m 12,418 AR
Emtenunimmant 1013 [LiRcE
Leyal nnd professiomal ER] o UAS
Seourity I T2.637
LE T 040 b ]
Provisieg fior slow moving invenenrics 51 2.5 41671
Insurasew RS T.uTI
Renk. rates mnl Gies 10582 [LIE LY
|h‘]m'l.'luldlll- ety piling & euipreni 17.1.3 IAATR B, 1%
Depreciation- right of e assel 1%.1 2 ATH 20l
Amorizmiinmn (L8] 148 sl9
s 16514 4,620

610456 Rl A

M0 Thisinchedes std¥ retrement beniedits mrounting b Rs. 2 R mmllon | 2022; Bs, 742 million)

Wz FlLve

35 OTHER EXPENSES Mie i Ty LN [ER]
Worhers' Poall Panticigaton Fund |WEPF) 142 BiLETR LS RTHES
Wirkers' Welfame Famd (WWF} 143 45315 438
Provisive for pas inrcff differontisl - nT4E
Al ibor” renmmeation k- | il 5455
Oher ceetifivnthany (LS i)
Internal mnilis foe 1,241 1,40

148240 L), 254
IS0 Amiitors’ pvminration
Soudii services
Anarms| modar fee 1,551 1,315
Half venrly mufi fee 411 15T
Centificnion for reguistory pospases 4K 10
3300 2,351
Chat o poclont pacpemses TAY Ris
3048 2807
Man andll seryhees
Tax services 505N 2.50=
A,05H I54%
fi01 3435
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

03 alk:
A& AVTHER ISO0AE T LN T R iy
Ciaim an dipassnl ol operating Tixed pssen 17 L 3 HAIx
Chali an remssERnernen| ol invesmment nroperty s inir valus 211 &0,T3] j13341
Reninl income 17343 4,022
ahem 4ILE14 2R, tid
115717 1 %01, i
2013 n2y
37 FINANCE COST R ) { e I
Vinanee chorge on kased assers 4,095 204
Umrealtaed loss on reoveasarement of short iemm investmenis 4088 -
Tamk chirpes 1240 1165
Pank jusmites CiriniEsi 111 111
Intewpss an Iname 445 15,517
10,315 1009
A FINANCE INCOME i3 LA
[LLES 0T B 0y
Income fromm finencial asschs:
Intewest on nivaiss AIH 237
Ineevess gn Pakismn Investment Hooeds 0,745 400
et an deposit sccmanis 17851 131,345
i derd inacoomy 198, 1146 I 75365
Aot b ol delered prani 2,850 1394
Interist on term deposil receipts - %
Umrenltnsd grin on remesswrement of short eom imvestments - 4|72
Fachampe gam 12,752 12.00]
AHEATT 178, T4
ful (b gz
¥ INCOME TAX EXPENSE My (R Ny FLLERILE]
Il Amounts recagmioed mopeofl or Toss:
Tan
Curremi year PR A HTE BT
] ETASL BTSATL
Erefened (L 122,545 13648
Tax expense for the yenr B&IL5TH ol 20
013 i
I Reeomciltarion of fax cbarge for the vear (Hs, i) L ([LE]]
L
Avvomsting profit hebaie tnx 112465 2 103 418
T'ax mie 0% bt L
Tetn aiii pecainliig profi Bl d53 R4 114
Tax effect ool ineopse smoshle o wer rsies 130 H43) [RIEETH
Effect of change in rme R R ET] JE R
Elvut of semponry ifference (53875 =
Effect ol zero e koot {125 P, b
Effect of super my 147,105 23 T
Ushers EN EH 74,791
Tax expenss for the yaur m HFL 320
48 EARMINGS FER SHARE = BASIC ANT DML
There s i dibini e et om (e base camanps per shure of the Company, which 5 based on 20z ok
et mrafin for the wesr { Rs HE =T5ﬁ= =I=I=ﬁ4ﬁ‘
Weighted uverzge munbir af ahares (Numbers) ITH63.6H) L7663, 030
Enriuigs per ahai i];lu['n.'l.'sl A6 £h,TE
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

4 CASIEAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cnshiund cash equivalenis for the purpose nf satement of cash flowes

41,1 Heconcllintlon of moyemenis of Hahililes g0 cash flews arisimg (rom fnancing sorivities

Balance a1 Fulv 3024

& gt fevan Phiamw snge o tivitles
Ividiond paid

HRoeoempl of birin

Hepryment of loam

Tutal changes fm fimecing cash fiows
Ather cinvepes

Interest charges

Lerss sddivines

Thvidemd duclanad
Todml Binbiliiy refased champues
Balnnes 2t 31 June 2022

Bealangean | July 2022
Civamgsa from Pauameime aciivilies
Crrvndend pouid

Repayinent of Frnbie Teass

Repayment of loan

Tuotal chumyes from Gmancing casl fows
Lhiver chnmges

Inlerest changes

Cnnrrihusions by the Company

Lo ackditions

[rvidend decismed
Total linhifity related changes
obance af 38 Jane 2013

FLERS T

Tt 115 ]
L FLER ]
3 480,747 1 AI9.228
Lense Rabvilinies l.&llu A s T |-IILHH il ddbe el ‘Foeal
T ErEes TR |
s, Bl

254000 ETRE] Jilh 553 415545
: B [ETTRED| (45,150
{12281 = = (1220}
- 171,955 - LITRAFE)
TR (1714935 N 11,172 368)

2718 15517 = 15292
1715 15517 . 15272
- | -1 b 126 | | 165,226 |

- 3 e 2%

16,254 124,748 120,858 2k i

16234 124,740 124,854 2640410
= = 1000, T (406, T68|
(15,9301 B = L ET]
b 11253303 - LI25231)
115830 1282005 {blin, T (547,924

4,405 453 - 4578

11,389 - = 11,20%

15,384 443 % TEHRT
. -l 414054 || 41404 |

R z 414,554 414954
13688 = 1365 133382

43 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, HRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The sgpregate amouiss cliorped for remnesmtion melinfing b s and perquisies, fo oliel eacciitive officer, direeinig and executive were &5 follows

Munngerial renussmtion
Moedica| begefit

Cimibity fimd coneribution
Proweheni Timsl cantrbiutions
Homse remt allowirnee
Hinais

Travelling cxpinsi
Compenstad shiences

Muinber of peokimy

1022 b R
Uldel Executive Pt Chiel Execulive Exatmives
Oificer LT
s (Hlib K=
H, 15 34,821 a6 FLE S
1014 b 915 1]
151 L] 323 38
=0 Rk dnd 1 ks
1081 0028 1414 &R
H.a3 16053 Tul2s L6, 152
1420 - 5

15K A ind 31
21,997 012, At 14511 54 455
! 7 1 T

LD I addithin s abovie Preg furnshed accommedition s pravidand g the chiel suecintive ofTicer, Further, company-maintained vehlcles are alas providad (o the
chiel gxseutive offkeer ol eacvutivess e et hook vl of which ane Bs. 2606 millon (20022 fe 4025 millin), Gonudty 53 puyable sechied executive
ullhger amd gxecuinvgs in aecondosie with ihe teome of emplivmend, while conlrifmisn G chicl evegutive ofTioey and exepiivgs in iespevt of wrmnsliy snd
penslon ane basad on actsanial valuason,

1.2 Dircetaors of the Uimpaiy wend nol pald oy femrnmeration during e year except for the megling 20 ol Kr S SRR (2023 Fa 435000000, Nainber al
Diirgwins ot the repodiing date were K (2023 §)
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Murree Frewery Company Linilod
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Crperating scuments

The Company bhas three reponable sepments, as deseribod bubow. which ane the Conpany's sirategie business mes, These sratepie business
unils alfer difterent products and see mensped geparadiely because of the regquisrement of different technologhes and marketing sirlegics. These
sepments leve been sbentafred on the basis of business mamely Liquer Division, Class Divisten amd Tops Division, The Felbewing semmary
describes the operations of cach renomable segment;

Heportable segments hperations

Liguar [Myiston Manufacturng and sale of aleobolic and non-aleobolic bey erages
Tops Dhivision Manifactmiang and sabe of Tood produces, fuoices amd moseral water
Cilass [vision Mnnul-ulnur:np, arul sake of shass et | anied |.rn

For cach of the business unit, the padit committée, the Boord of Directers and the Company's Chiet Executive Cficer (CFEQ) pleng with the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO ) reviews ivfemal monngesnant reports on af least quonterly basis:

Thete ane virying levels of integruthen between the three segments. This integration inelisbes transfers of raw mabenal amd Aocded  goods
respectively, The accounting policees of (e reportable sepments are the sone ss deserchod innoee 4,19

Performance |s measmred on segmient profit before income tax, o5 incloded i the internal monsgement reports, that dre reviewsal by the
Company's CECY along with the CFO. Sepment profit is used to measure performancs as management believes that such informalion is the
sl pelevit i evahuating tie resule of corain seonsenis relative s other cntities that operate within thesy industnes

Information alwnt reperiabic segments

Thie deguil ol atilization of the Company's asseis and related liabilitics of the neportabhbe sepments is as follows

IJquur Cilass 'l'ups f'urpnrall wilice Tl
[iviivlon Dhivisin I¥iviion
1R=.H=.'llﬂﬂl (g'mm ﬂlé 'l ﬂiié'[HHH L&'[HH]}
Azsets flfi 11_H48.998 Iiilﬁ'm_]_ A ?'ﬂ w7 | 9]..&:3 !i; II.II?:‘.
2032 | 1144474 | .IIJZIEJJ L'-':\'i.{l[ll | Eh.0173 | 5.0H9. 953
Liabilities |3 1,'?1]3'“5 161,204 SHT.154 B4 M52 A1 TET‘"
2032 114197 207 521327 [EOERET 2A17,. 160
wan current assels - additions
oy, plant mz3 %‘ﬂﬁl 1& E]i] i - -ll]l:enu
anad cyuipment ek, 92.553 4,366 41960 - 138,075
Right of Ulse asset 3:? 7.76% - -1‘4-_1]!.? - 11177
Crther material ems
Expernal revemse 3 lﬂ.lﬁli'iﬂﬁ J16,063 6,058, ThS - TEEET 313
2022 14,2100 5= 237,54%] 503 H2TH - 20,25 TS
Inter-segment revenue 023 HIlHln 115667 = 2IHITART
2022 Tah 240 [ | 2616 2.520,7hd
Cither come b Th298 B, 0 3219 115,717
202 91,9497 515 R 444 150,366
Finunee £osf 023 (h.657) (T3} (3.005) - {1335
2022 [ITETET LITHS 12518 - { 15.609)
Finnnce mearms Inra #H,N“ T,.“'E 18074 4:!“,12{!
2022 06,420 1,205 10,471 - JT8. 756
Wt finande inconw i} 8,192 T.312 14,471 - 420085
X2 349,507 28T 7.553 - 359,147
Depreciation o3 Hiiﬂll 11K 458 l!;i'!lﬂl 45,208
2022 143,751 117 &4 1417 B 76 ELEREL
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Murree Brewery Company Laniled

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Anrucal Report. 9093

Revonciliabions of reporinble sepmient revenves, profit or boss, assets and linbilities and other mateninl tens aee as ander

Revenues

Todnl revennie for repartable sepments
Eliminntion of infer-segment revenue

Profii before tax

lotal profit for seportnble segments
Unallocated smoiints - Ciber expenses

Aoty

Toan] essets for reportuble segments
Oither unallocated emounts

Lishiltles

Toul lisbilitses for repostable sepnwnts
Oither unallocated amounis

Ciengraphical segments

Al the vssets of the Company are beld in Pakistan ond substantizliy all the revenues of the Company are genersted in Pakistan
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23 el | 73]

{ s, "DME) | Hs. 1000
21428070 177550386
(ZH3TART) (2.520.718)
18,591,183 15,234 318

2269995 2353642
(145330 {1601.254)
I, 124005 2195438
16,557 563 13,4490 230
03,699 14,023
16,651,262 | 50M9.4953
TASZAMR (T e
Rl B2 L 8.Adl
3317270 247,169




Fr ol c el i It sl LFLTH LIFBTF GAE 19 LN E51°6ETT ¥ a03aq (S50 g

LPTREE SHIHTY e L ILEr LBINE L LS HEE THEHEE AU FIGE 1N
TR F [N (T [T [T [ arnFiF SHLOE ALY
(01 | (25010 (15T LE00'E) (R LELD LE1RT) (Ls0ral R AR
IRTRER' S HIL L (i Tl (RO BaT [y LRE'ESL FRLEY | [ET L josd Swpesadp
(L9 1g9) [T T3] - (5] + = SIGAP e 10 SE0] WAL
G LIS L BTILE in] 1 1°H LARTH BET0L U ER[IY
(FET I [T g - - - - - ngesrll S S
(Renmee) (51619 (gTsrsn (Rt LT i gl ireensh {CEs el e 1Tr SN ARy
(3o =T ] (98" ) [bd =] AE ] LR L ROw [ T 0 sasad e unnme s pue Buiag
SN BIHIS'T £ED LG SETILYE TahFIE 1agsng b9 T EOFITT LIAOHA S5O0

R0 11} (PR LS 1) R T WLEHEE |} I Calk 1} LERIIL Y (8Ll
(s sl [ - - e all [N 1500 LHS|ATR L3510
(0069 1T (R RS [ (TOE8TLT) (ZLLTEms) L THER L LT CIEEes L (ET L5 00 sapod pingp
SATVS A0 LS00
RIEHETE] £RI° e 'R L STSNEL'Y T LLTIE NEFERTT BETREY L FHLERW amusay
(REGTEEH) (Tsswsh TSR IFLsETs I s pEl [ (Lol EaTer TweLserr! AP ASIYG [IE ¥ SIS

[T ]| SEURERD PRIrSAT'E LV ERe's R [ T'yrd ST ERREI IRF RN
| ~ (g 1aL| LOUSling | TR S DI L)
YCT' L #E ] SEL'LAE'RD DL TETE (M #86's |66 LET £l ChLHE] IO LA ja - axuonumy Aumd paigp
Tzl - Pl = . - . F BLIFHAL S (AT
[aea) (Res'slii‘1h [RFI'RTE (85" sLab - - LELIFELY ezl SEHRGRSEE ap 58]
SLUTETOE FIEL05'ST BRI E FITREE [66LET ERrE FEHITH SERBTETRI SSOIE - s Apnd prgp
HAADNHL
[, 5311 (i1, “¥ i, =4 Tk, =3 LK, s {1wiih, ¥4 T, "5 Tk, =k
00T £207 TEE EIOT TI0E £T07 tong £T0T
[ g sl BRI Smp) B el

NOLLVINHOANT LNAINEAES ©0r

€Z0TZ aunf Og papua Jeah ay) Jod
SJUWIEIS |ejouURUl Y} O3 SBION

Py fudugy Kismaigy: saumpy

96



?‘fnﬂuﬂf JE‘EZP&JL& .‘20-23

Te6EL1 Tea'sLI] - -

LE SL0'lE it #
aLEa1 HOLE " “
BTEETI OTFTIN T r *
Hau'sl KH9'E] - -
15661 1E - TEsUY [
LALO8K'T = LELRYT -
e T = BrETE =
9ETTH = 9ELTH =
(il . - HIF
T5F RS - TEFR0S =
REL' = Ll %
R ) R Twor : - TG
9T R R = = TIITEL
(IS ] i 54}
i3 ey
[T do o
it sappge| 1507} CEITLT]
LT £ 1] T i) | ] ] e ALy A[EA 1T
T AFE ] JUETHIRIET un.:.....n....

Kk [RUHALP PaatE B[
FtE g predu)
CEF T E saqeied sy pue aped |
Frr i kL L bl

ANUA J{E) D PASRSEAN g SRR [EjAueD ]

e o ST [V TR TR
THTLT SHQEARIN IO PEE SR APY
¥ put 97 SIgap apri
i e syvadap g Juocy
EL SIBALTSA AT 18 e
¥rF pun Il SN TILEY o]

JMfRA HE) IT PAINYEAL JOU SEASE |EI0E] |

e SJUMMEIAE] WIA] 101

SN[ U] U RTSEHD GEASSE EAHE |

iy ETIT AURE i

TEIMNIISH] [ETIRELT] S 0T Eg-Ry

A A0 I st agenos g 1 s jEnowe Fonume sy g Ay S0 P EUESEN 0 sy
FRISIEIIT] [T SASSE (RLNIRUL} 10 BORNTLICH STV JUEg 260 |00 S0P I ARaIeiang anes S0 O O e nayy Smpn)aay samyiqu] IPLNIEIT e SRS SRR J0 £ JTE) pUR S SUAL ei seons ajdes T oy a1

€707 aunf Qg papua Jeah ay) Jo4

SJUSWIe]S |_IDUBULY DY) O} SII0N

oty fuduary Riomaigy: sasimyy:

S|EA JIE) PIE STUIEgEsEp Tunnneaay

SINAWTLEST TV IONV AL

I'tk
i

97



o

{rnual E&p&*’cﬁ '}O-?J

“anjua a1 Jowannuriosddn apqooseean i am symooe Fom N JSnna0 S20[I0T] TSN O )28 JRLNIN0G S0 10] £ %y 58 20 ) e s e Anrduwoy g |

ajgeArd v epF puw i pacteann sjgeied Anpoasave s - sjgeded ey sajEs sjqead K ODOET s EIIEEER [00I] SXNIRADE SPa|3ED 1]

SRAELE'T BRYTLET 3 J
BT RITE £ ] ¥t
(1" 1" . - by
BET T tirE i | : . CHR F
]| weln| g = RN
T | SEUETE , . 1
ALATHE - P YO L LR AL
BrL T = STools T = bl Y
Tl £ : CH LT
allrsl = BTl = ik U OF
b 1 : 2F6i ¥ puE T
BEFIIE T REF1YS E £
(115 | . 14| " (il i

TP San| e [ - ’ e

IHEaLE | IrFaca'l 9L’ = E [ 4T

Loy in00=y! |
iz |
i EaiE L S 1Ljad
1 S| gy 190) E ]
(Mg i |2 | [Ar] EHE] [HAIRLL ey

Aliin 1)y

PUIILEIE FUEALINY

EZ0E aunr gg p=spu= Jeah dyl 1o
SIUIWIIL)S |BIDUBULY 3} O) SBION

popryy by Kiomaigg: sauimy:

sl o saounApn s3pR| e 1

ISR U]

P AIp P
aapquied s puespi |
EMW[HEI] 2T

iy wuap T

..___.___.__ ..__u.“_ i _._......___,_x_.__._._ i 5_-__"_Lu__ _4___.__._.._____..._

SR |EE] LR PUE 15T
T TALANM A1 N AL SO AP
E1G9f e |

glrlap wiag T
FPUALEERATD _Eu:"w._.—:.._

S HAIA P LY i._E__.._.

AN|TA JB) B PAIRSEN 00 S105ET [T

FAUNEAA OLS) E0gT

DOEN ] 10 [RUNEEM S10EE [FIIURI]

CilE mp gy

FHLEHLMLSI [RIMINIEE B3 Jauneg-uy

Fit
O
U

98



.5

fi

?‘Iﬂﬂudﬁ' Et?ptﬁ"tﬁ: .?O-? 3

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MARNAGEMENT

I'he Clompany has caposure o the following fisks ansmge irom fnamcisl msinamans

= U ritie sl (Mo i 5.1 )
= LII.lI.‘IiIJII!' nsk { Moe 44 5.2)
- Market risk {Moke <453

Risk management framowark

The Boand of Darectors has overnll sepensibifiey foe the establishment amd oversight of the Company's nsk musapenset fxmewark. Tlae Boand 1
responsihle for devetoping and moniconing the Company's risk managgment pelicics

The Company's risk manngement polivies are estnblished do klentify ond sonkyse the risks foced by the Compeny, da set appropriste risk fimifs and
vontreds, and o monitor fsks i adherence to lmdis, Bisk management pelicies and systems sre reviewed regularky to retlect changes m market
conditions and the Company’s sctivitiea, The Company, throsugh it vainieg and massgensent sondaods and peovedire. pims o mainiom 8
|Iir.l.'i|'|| szl amel constructive coniml envrpnmizst in s hich all employees ncerstand ther roles onif ghlipatons

The Audit Commiliee ovirsees buw numagement monitors compliznes with the Company’s nsk management pelicies 2nd procedures and reviews
the sdequesey aof the tak maapement frumesak o relition o tlve makes Gseed by the Company. The Audi Cinmumittee 15 assisted 6o oversahit nde
by Imternal Audit Internol Avdit undertzkes both regular anad ad-hoo reviews of risk manapement controls and procedures, the resulis of which are
repited 1o the Andit Commithase

Credit risk

Credit pisk is the risk of Gnoncial loss to the Compamy if 8 costomer of coumierparty fp & finnsoial nstrament fails 0 mest s contractual
vhligatsons, aml arises prmcipally from mmde debts, sdvipces amd deposits, intenest avcruiad, other recetvabldes, mangn oo lotter of guaruniee and
baenke Dabances. The casrving smount of finnmcial asseld repeeseans the maximmm eradil exposure. The Company's credin sk exposunes s
entepariasd under the fpllowing headings:

Trade and viher receivables

e Compomy™s exposure #0 oredit sk = nfluesced mainly by the imdivides) chemsoerisies of cach cessomers’ilezlers. The Compeny has
established & credit policy under which cach new customer 15 anobyred individuadly for credimwosibiness before the Company™s standard payment
teriins aml conditsons ane offered. Credin limits ore established for esch custoiner, which e repularly reviewed amd approsved by the management
Cussomers that Fail to meest the Company’s benchmark creditworthiness may iransact with the Company only on o prepoyment basia

Coneentrotion of eretit risk

The carryimg amawmt of financial wskets repneasents the maxomum credit eanosure. The maximum exposire fo credid risk ot the reporting dale is os
Hiellonws:

3 1021
Ml i s, T (R THIO)

Long term advances 22 gl 44,4 11,738 | 2.4
Loty ierm invesiments k| SR452 811,450
Lomg term deposits 24 il 44.4 44,419 ERIC L
Trade debes iy rimial 448 42236 1501
Mulvanees amgd oiher recgivables T A2 9 15311
Bonk halances i nnal 44.4 T AL TGO 2 dilic, 40

IATL 0 2 W 159

Crengraphically there is no concentndion of credst risk st the raparting date {20272 Nill, The maxomum axposure e aredit sk b fimnnein] assets ut
the reparting dase by type ol counler ety (s ax follows:

Fromm government mstisitons S{8452 1125
Bunks and finaneial insEitmmns 1433760 AN ADE
(Mbwre 130,752 Lr ]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

k3 2022
Laroes lmpairment Gross lenpairment
Luss allowamee For cxpected eredit loas {Hs. O} ¢ Ba Ty
The aging of tade debis &1 e reponing date 15 ns follows
Lk than sne year 44,3119 (2.073) P | 20
44,309 (2073} AT 12 =)

The nwrvement i the allowance for impaimment in respect of wrade debis durng e year 15 given in noge 26,1

The doubiful accoant in respect of imde debis ane used o eecord impoinment osses onless the Company is satisficd tat oo recovery of she omouni
ving s possible; ar that podint tlse smooat considened brecoverahle g wrimmen off aguinst the financil ssset dieerly

I'he Company has no collaserad i respoct of financanl nssess exposed ta credit nsk. Based on pos cxpensnoe, management belbeves that exeep ns
nlresdy provided for in these financinl datzments, nis forther impairment i reguired fo be necogmizeed agninst oy financial assets of the Compony.

Credit quality of fnangial astets

The crodit guobity of Company's lisanciol sssels hove been assssed bolow by reference i external eredit ratng of counterpartivs determined by
Moody's lovestor Services Ine., "akiston Credin Ratmg Agency Limited (FACEA L and JCR - Y18 Credic Rating Company Limited (108 - Y158 The
comnberparties for which exiernnl credit ratings were nod available hove been nssessed by eference lo intermal credid miings delenmined hosed an
thear historkcal infoemation for ony defiult i meeting obiigstiong

A analysis of the eoedit quality ol fnuncial asseds that are nediber past due poe Impalned is as fellows:

01 Hyx3
Rating (. (M)} (Fs. 1)
Lumg term advances
I:_'nunl:‘rpunici wthiont external credis rulint: 11,73k 1.2, R0
Lomg term investnwenis
I'_'n||r|h..-rpn.r|||.". with ¢xlymal credn mimg B- S0R.452 10 450
023 Hiz2
Lusng terni depasiis Rating {Rs-'0IH1) { s MG
Counterprties with external credil rating A 4 d
Crnmberpariies with extemnal credit ratmg A 12.84) 17,5
U oumternarties with extema] credit mimg AAA i, 292 7,628
Counterparies witkout externol crodit rating 15,590 14,253
daxe TR
Irade ilelis
Counberparties with extemal credin miing Al 2379 6,220
Coninlermpannes W b external credu ralmg AAA n81 A=
I!"mlnl-:rpunm:i wrihout oxwernnl credin miing It.l*:ll.ﬁ iy 1359
15,000 el i)
Advances and other receivilles
['L‘Ill!]lJ.'TPU.ElIﬂ wrthoait eaiernol eredit rting I 12349 ! |_ 15311 J
32349 1531
Bank halances
Cronmierpamies with extermal credil rting Al IR sT ] 2AR0A4S
Counberparties with exlernal eredit miing AA+ Eln,THT -
Connberpartics with exteraal eredit rating A-1 11541 14,889
Counterparies with ealernal cridin mating A3 - T4
Counberpartbes with exteenal credy rdimg HEH- B4 -
Counbermarties wiihmat external eredit mting 3,337 -
2433760 2400 K8
IMET4T 1,906,164

Lbigubedity risk

Liguidaty risk s b risk thal the Commpany svill encounier dafficulty inomeetmg the obligatons associmled wih s Gnancil Habilisies thal ore setted
by defiverng cesboar anather lrancsal psset. Prodent lguidity sk manoegement implics msintining sullieient cash uml macksiahle secunties, the
nviablity of F|.|.11|5ir|||: Ao on ndequnte mriumt of committed credn neilises und the ability do close our market Tml:ililms duig to dvmmmie neiure of
the: business, The Campainy's approsch fe mosamng byusdity is s endure. as tir as posaible, et oo will elways have sulficient lguadiny to meset s
finbilities when due, under both opmal sod sireseed conditions, withoul ingurrine unoceepizhle losses o risking domoge to the Companys
repudakion
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Expeosure fo ligquidity risk

Liguudaty riske {2 ghe nsk that the Company will oot be ahle to meet @ financial obligations us they fall due. Pradens Dgquadicy sk management

bplis memaming sulTiciens cash and markershde secunbies, the avallsbiliny of funding o an adeguate ssoant of commimed credit facilines and

the ability v close var morket poeitivns due b0 dymamic natare of the business, The Company's npprosch ta menaging ety is woensure, ws far o

posiable, that it will always have sufficient Hguidity fo meel 115 labalndes when due, nnder hoth normal and skreesed conditions, withowt incurmng

imacceptalele bessed or msking damuage to the Company’s eputation

The nmtanty profile of the Compeny s fosncial habilities based on the contoicioal anwmmmis 4 as folkes
Carrying amvnt Contracioal cash  Maturlty in less

Waturky after Marturity after

fEnws than | vear one year and up five venrs
tin five years
[ELERITIE
plUr]
Lease linlilities 15085 17369 T80 o, HY -
I'rade and other payabibes 1023420 1023420 123,420 - -
Vnpnid dividemd 105,769 105,7h% 105, 76% = -
Unclalmed dividend ATATE AT ALNTE - -
1,175,052 1,177,635 1,070,744 £, BHE -
Casrying anount  Conrachunl cash  Matwrity m less Matunly after e Maturily afles five
flvws than | wear venr znd ap o five YEREE
Feis
(s, )
2022
Long term loan 124,748 1 ZH.AFH0 128,00 -
Listde hadnliises Ih 234 1254 a4z Han2
Traide ool wiher pevables | dkt4. 7340 1 44,349 | A4, 249 -
Umpaid divpdiend BhHaD S HE0 PR
Unelatmsd divadend T1H1E 1LH18 3RIR -
1313489 1. 301%.251 131078 A.467

It 15 el expecied that the cash fows nchnded in the motunbe inalvis coold seewr signaficantly carlier or ot signidicandly different amounts.

I'he contractul cash Mows relating v inonce kease labdbties ave been detarmined an the basis of expéeted mark up rates. The mack-up rates have
b dliselesed in note 10 e these finoneial sieiemenis,
Markel risk

Mdarket sk &5 the rigk that changes in marker prices. sich os foreign exchange ratee, interest mines and equity prives will affeer the Company’s
meama or the value of its holklings of Anancinl insmimenis. The shiective of market risk manngement i to manage and condrol marke) sk
eaposires withie sceeplhls parameters, while optomizmg the selam on nsk

Forelgn eurrency risk

The Campany e éxposed te cuarrency sk to the extent that there s a mismaich between the curmencser i which ssles, purchases and other
transactions and balances nre denonsinaned &nd the funetionsl currency of the Cosspany, The functioasl curoncy of the Conypany 12 Pakisan Rupes:
IPER), The ewrrency in which these transactioms angd halanees are |'|'ri|'n||r||!.I denpmmnaded 15 LS Dollars | LISEY, The Companys poientinl foreign
CUMTERY XU CoangInse.

I'tansactional sxposure (0 respoct of o e tnal cuarrency monetary s
- Transaetiomal exposuns in ndspect of non Rinceenal currency expenditime and revenbes
Tramsactional exposure ln respect of non functiomal currency monetary lfems

Monetury sy, inchiding flaascial gssers and lubilivies. Jeeominated o cumeneses other than the faseonsl currency of the Company b
pericdicnlly restaied to PER cquivalend, and the associated gain o loss is tnken g the profit ar loss, The foeeign currency risk refaled to moneiacy
Huems 14 momaged s part of the sk mumagenenl drtery.

Trunsaetional expisare in respect of non functiomal corrency expendilure and reventes

Certam operating mned cupital experbiture is monrred by the Cormany m comencies ofber than the fumctional curreney. Certain sales révenue is
carsed o ewrencies other than the fenetionel cumency of the Company, These currency s sre mumagel os pant of overall nak momagement
strneeiy. The Commany docs not enter o frward exchange confracts
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Expeisure to forelgn carrency risk on yenr end monetary balonces

1823 il Kl
Hs, Usn LT} LIS
im "EH) . TE10
Hank balsitces A ‘N £ 2480 15 1)
The Ferllow g significant exclinnge rates were applied during the year
Avernge rate 'Rrpnrli'n.-g:duk rute
F{LEE] ki) M 2022
Rs. Rs.
KR puer LS Doller 1234 181,24 24509 204,57

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Follciwimm is the demarsrmution of the seraaimvaly 4o e reasonnbly possibee chonge m o eadhange mie of LSO opplied w ssses and linbilries asof i
repueting date repreentiad i feecien ciarrency, with all other vormables hebd consant, of the Compoamy's peafil befiae b

23 22
s, T {Rs. THIO )

Encraaee in 1A% LIS e i ZUH

Decivase m 10%: LIELY caie {l} A

lwterest rate risk

The mierest mie sk 15 the nsk that the value of the fsencml nstnement will Mectante due i changes i the market inberest migs. The Company
s vrod b linbifities at variable ranes.

Eaposiere to lnteiest rate rlsk

M the repuaiing date b meerest ralg nrofile of the Company's interest h:nn:n; Timamesal sermsnes was as folkpws

Effective intervst rate Moty Carrying imounix
101 3033 223 2022
Interest rate risk { %} { %] (R (M1} (R I
Flwed rate nstrmmeits
Frmancial asweis L25% m 1% D23% e [ 1%hper 22, 33 and M 24100 385 | 28 S
pur annum anhuim
Fimancial Tiaknlitees T 48% ti X5 io | 4 50 ig 15,688 16,234
23,97 per [T AfHun
anniim
201 T ]
—

Fair valoe sensitivily anadysis for foed rate instromcnis

The Commany daes mot aceount for any Fiesd mte finanaial assets and babilities at fair vahee throogh pml'|1 o loss, Theretore, a uhangu I inienesk
rates &1 1k reporiing dane would not affect profil o loss

Cash Mo sensbtivity analysis for varialle rate nstrwments

Thene are no autsiending variable mbe mstoments ot the reponiing date (2022: Nil), Henee the Company 15 nod expesed 10 any vorinble inteosst mie
sk

(nther market price rlsk

The rrrimar_\- gl of the Company's investment stalegy 15 1w moximize investment rebwong on surplos funds. The l"ﬂrnrlalr_!,- i.I.lJI:TLi a pidicy of
crsuing i minimdee its proce rick By iovesting e secarities having sousd marked petfonnance. Conaln prvesimenis are designated ax beld for
tranling becase thelr perfomence i octively menitored and these are managed on 3 fir value basis, Equity price risk srises fiom investments o
Euer vale throweh prodit or oss.

Semsbivity anulysis — egaily price risk

For sated investmenis e lissificd os FYTPEL 100 basis poine merease in morke price &t repoming dade wisald have mereased profit by Bs, 1427
milldon (2023 Ba 19.76 milleon): on equal change m tie oppasite disection would leve decrensed prafin by thie same amousl The anolvses s
performmed om the snme bogis for 2023 mmad sssumes that il other varinbles remam the soime
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Measuremant
45 CAPACTTY AND PRODUCTIHIN fasis lﬂiﬂ 2022
45.1 Liguer DHvislon - Rawalpindi
[F1] Cgagity of inghestrial unit
Beer and Mon Alcohilic Beverages (NAB) Litges 54,761,240 34,762, 240
Pakistnn Maode Foreign | iquar iPMFL Casen 1 2 B.GH X 40 208 2 400 50A
Mo Alcobuaic Producs | MAP) Litres TR, 624,000 S, 1R, O
(b} Acetmnd production
Heer and MNan Aleohnlic Bevemges {NAR | L.itres TLETES0Y 8043937
Pakistnn Made Foreign Liguor (FMFL) Cesen 12 WG 1,008,477 1,903 965
Maon Aleshalic Products INAF) Litres TO TN G2 fd S RS2

4511 Normmal capacily is based an 26 sawking days per momth with one shift of 8 hours per day, Actis] production represents mubiple shifis underaken
kesapang am view e markot deemand

45.1.1 The daifferenee e due o the suppdy anil seasennl demand of the market,

A5.2 Tops Division
[ Rawalpindi
{u) Capacity of industrinl unit
Tetra pack jislces Lirres A3,5K0,000 33,580,000
b} Actual production
Tetrn pack noces Litres 17,051,758 21,859,741
(i) Harear
() Capackty of Industrial unie
Tood products Cariiony, 275, B 175 (1]
Jce (MR & Bet) Litres o, S0, e BB LIRNTE]
Mlineral whier |.itrps 3,424, 000 RSN
Tetra Pak joces Litres 35,0, M 35,000 00
i) Actual produdliom
T prodduces Crjone 124,730 103,716
Jupce e ME & Held Liksus SR4E, 149 6, 159, 129
Mlineral woler Litres 48,115,352 47,146,579
Tetre Pak juices |itres T4 SRR oA
453 Cilnss Dhivising - Hntdar
(m) Mubtlng cupacioy M. Tisers A, 150 40,154
(b} Actunl production - Glass neelted M. Tone 15,971 LRI

103



4f

|
A
4)
£

|

4n.1

463

1

3
4)
5
&l
|
&)
9
1
1y
13%

Mﬁﬁw&y MW

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

THANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Reelnted pariees |,'|_||nlm'iq- ul dhireelors; entivies over which ihe directors are obile fo exercise significent influence, eniitics with common directars,
mgjor shaseholders, sl rebnoment funds and key monscemenl pessomnel. Balances with relabed parines are shown e pole B fo tbe nancal
srmeinents. The ranssctwmrs with reloted partics, other thin thess which are disclosed b note 1716 and 41 reobse finascial stlements, are as

finlbmas
MNanie of Related Party Mature of Relationslip  Perceafage of Nature of iransactions 2013 a2
share during the vear s, 000y (LT
el dimgr

Ll Badulyl & Comipany Assoclated company on 17.75% Sk comintesian 150,987 148,976
(Trrivaite  Limired neern of eommi Services oegprred (R kI TR 120

dirceteaship Drividend paid 63,62 171 R4t
Kungsway Fand Associtad company 21800 Dividand paid B1.407 237451
Band of direcrars D 20,35 Dividend paicl T 6l | 2 548
Dbrectons’ relatives Drisecioes' relatives 17.63% Bividend paid &l HH 1634003
SaniT retiremient bene (Tt plan - Seall rétirentent funds il Comtritwion by the WM 7783
Prervident fumd U omiany
Sanff setirenvent benefit plus - Seaff retiresent funds &il Centribution by the 040 5751
Pension find Cronnmaay
Bhandara Faundation Clhdef enecutive officer acts mil Drarsatban padd - 1500

a5 p Tnestes
Kity Management Perscnmel Eew managenont Nil Flemunteraism T5.28Y0 GIHIR

persancl

Details of comps=nsatson o ey management persanmel CIMMHISING of chief exgcutre afficer, difeciors apd executive s disclosed m onote 47,

Folkwaing p.u'lw.llhr.: relwie to wssecinted comany, i|'||.'|.1|'|'J|:II'I.I|.I\.'!| mutaide Pokistun, with whom the l"-eunp.un}' hos entered inee irEnsactinns during

T yzar

Paribeulars

Dhetails

Niaime of sasoc ey
Remisterad sidress

Caonsntry ol neorparsticn
Hasts of associatpn

Aggivile perceitage of shoiclolding

Kinpswny Found

15 Avenue JF, Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, Grasd Dochy

of Lavembasrg

Girand Duchy of Lusembaurg
Sharchelder with skgnificant influence
i 28 BRS (21 R0 urdllur}' shiores of He. W each

Falkawing particalors reléde b ihe directom, of the Comparry, and their relstives with wham the Cismpany has enendd inse imnsactions during the

WVLHT.
Shares bebd In the Company

Name Basis of relationshin Numbers Perecniipe

M. Isphanyar M. Fhandarn Chiel Fxecutive Officer (CRO) ERO TN ] 4%,
Ch. Muwen Afzal Uhatmman 3, K52 AkdH "
Wrs. Goshi M. Bhandars DiFecios | EHHE 74 260
Wi Porvaiz Akhber Dirgciir | Atk (RS
M. Ak FL Shigad Dhipectos kKR LT
Wls. Jefinnara Snjjas Dhivecton | AIE [T e
M. Shahbae Hasder Agha Direcive L1TR LU b
Wir. Khelid Aziz Mirzz Drirector 120k .04
Wirs, Jasmie Bhomkara Ulhose farmily member of CED 33425 | 2%
Wlr. Banshed M. Blandara Clhose Bmaly member ol CEO 2 Ui HET AT
Yirs, Munizch M, Hhomglpre [ ST |"|1|1'||I:'.I megmbgr of CEQ) [NEY R 4 135
My, Eane sphusyvar Bhandas Clhokee Bimaly- member ol CED Sk R | 81%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

47 EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FIIND TRUST
Al the imvestmeents om of provident fond tnese hove been made mooccondanee with the provisams of Section 218 of the Componies Act, 2007 and
vonditions specified therunde

L3 202l

48 RUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (M umbyery {Miembers
Einplovess st year emd 1, 7% 1835
Average emphoydes during the wear 1,826 |76

44 SUBSEQUENT EVENRTS
The Boand of Dircctors of the Compony in the meeting held on 13™ Seprember 2023 proposed finol cosh dividend of 50% |e, Re 5 per share 12022
100% e, Bs 18- per share), These finoncind staerments do ndt efiec e propesed final dividend on ordmary shames os pa:.uhl..'. whech will be
gecainbed for m the statement of chiniees o equdty s an appropration fram the napproprated profit nihe inaecial sktementd o the year emling
M June 2024

B GENERAL

20,1 Dividend puyablie @ the Muoslim shopcholders s deemed wp be approprinbsd trom income ansing fom the Commmany's imvestmends, non-aleahaoliz
predits amd rendal income:

5 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Phiesie fiestieanl stalerments were autharoad T ks by tle Bosnl of Direciors of the Campany el meeting heid o 13" Sepember 2023,

(g ———
L=ty ’W
-
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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PROXY FORM

[Section 137 of the Companies Act, 2017]

MURREE BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED
3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi

-
i

Estd. —_ i
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Company Secretary
Murree Brewery Company Limted
J=-Mutional Park Road, Rawalpindi,

I/ We slo or dio or wio r'o

bemg a member of Murree Brewery Company Limited and holder of ordinary shiares as per

registered Folie / CDC Participart 1D #. and CDC Sub Account # / CDC Tnvestor Account TD #
hereby appoint Mr./Mrs, sfoor dioor wio

L [ o having  registered Folio [ CDC Participant 1D #

and CDC  Sub  Account ®# [/ CDC  Investor Account ID %
as mylour proxy to attend and vote oo my/our behall at the Annual General
Meeting ol the Company to be held at 9:30 a.m, on Friday., October 20, 2023 ot Registered Office, 3-National Park

Road. Rawalpindi or at any adjournment there of.

Affix Rs. 50/
Revenue Stamp

Signature of Member
(Sigmasture should agree with the specinen
registered with the Company).

Dated this day of October, 2023
Wiknesses:
1}  Signature : 2} Signature ;
Mame ) Mpme o
Address Adldress
CNIC or Prospont # CNIC or Passport #

Imporiant notes:

1. Mo person shall act as proxy unlesg he himgelf is member of the Company, except that a comparate entity may appoinl 3 persan
whi 15 nor a member. Mon-natoral members must fumnish board resobution / power of attorney with specimen signatres of
proxy along with the proxy foom.

2. Atested copies of the CNIC or the Passport of the member and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form. The proxy
shall produce onginal CNIC or omginal passport-at the ime of the imectimg.

3. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company, Murree Brewery Company Limited., 3-Matinnal Park Road,
Bawalpindi noet less than forfy-eight (48) hours {excluding non-working days) before the time for holding the meeling.

4. CDC Sharcholders and their proxies are cach requested to attach an attested photocopy of their Computenized Mational Identisy
Card (CNIC) or Passport with the proxy form before submission to the Company (Oviginal CNIC { Passport is cequired to be
prodluced at the time of the mecting)

5. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Dircctors” resolution £ power of attorney with specimen signatare of the person
nomimated to represent and vate on behalt of the corporate entity shall be submited {(onless it has been provided earlier) along
with proxy form to the Company.
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The Company Secretary
Murree Brewery Co. Ltd.
3-National Park Road,
Rawalpindi.
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The Company Secretary
Murree Brewery Co. Ltd.
3-National Park Road,
Rawalpindi.
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Murree Brewery Company Limited

DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

Bank Account Detail for Payment of Cash Dividend

{(Mandatory Requirement as per the Companies Act, 2017)

Dear Sharcholder,

This is to inform you that in accordance with the Section 242 of the Companies Act, 20017, anv dividend payable in cash
shall only be paid through elecironic mode directly into the batk accoun! designated by the entitled shareholder, Please
note that giving bank mandate for dividend payments is mandatory and m order to comply with this regulatory
requirement and to avail the facility of direct credit of dividend amount Lo your bank sccount, you are requested to
please provide the following information:

E

Details of Sharcholder

- Mame of sharcholder

| Father’s Name
| CDC account Mo /! Folio No.

| CNIC / Passport No

| Cell number & Landline nomber

| Email address (Mandatory)

Details of Bank Account

| Title of Bank Account

| International  Bank Account \[PTR] [ T T T T T T TTTTTTTTTTTTT [ TC4digis ]
| Number ([BAN) * Mandatory” % IS N N D Y N O N O NN I O A .t
{Kindly provide yvour accurate IBAN number after consulting with vour respective bank
branch since in case of any error or omission in given 1BAN, the Company will nol be
held responsible in any manner for any logs or delay in vour cash dividend payment).

| Branch Name

f Branch Address

| It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and in case of any change therein, I/ we will immediately
| intimate Participant i.e. Murree Brewery Company Limited or fts Share Registrar ie, CDC Share Registear Services
Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.8, Main Shahra-e-Faiscal, Karachi. 74400, Pakistan, accordingly.

i Signature of Sha reholder

You are requested to kindly send us this letter immediately duly filled in and signed by you along with legiblie
photocopy of your valid CNIC / passport ol our address, Murree Brewery Company Limiled, 3-National Park Road,
Fawalpindi. Pakistan,

Regards,
Company Secretary

Murree Brewery Company Limited
3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi, Pakistan,
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